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FROM ThE PRESIDENT 

As a major research institution, Utah State University strives to engage minds 
and create endless opportunities for its students, faculty, and staff . Although the 
University has faced enormously difficult financial times recently, I believe we have 
an extraordinarily bright future .

As you know, Utah State University, like many other public entities in the State of  
Utah, continues to experience significant impacts on its budget due to the overall 
economic downturn . While there are a few encouraging signs on the economic 
horizon, the impacts of  the recession are not behind us . There is absolutely no 
question that this downturn has had, and will continue to have, lasting effects on 
our institution . Our charge is to find ways to deal with this new reality while we 
position our university for continued success .

The University is treating the economic downturn as a time for thoughtful self-reflection, a time to rethink organi-
zational structures, financial models, and curriculum and delivery systems . We are focusing on strategies that allow 
us to remain an active, forward-thinking institution and have attempted to treat this as an opportunity to define 
the type of  university that we will be for the next generation .

Over the past few years, we have become a very good university, and I firmly believe that we are on track to be-
come an even greater one . We are proud of  our research excellence, our student engagement, our stellar academic 
and creative arts programs, and our outreach efforts throughout the state . As we move forward, the University 
will continue to focus on these strengths and work creatively and effectively to position us for an exciting future .

I feel a great sense of  humility and honor for the privilege of  being at Utah State University, and yes, I feel that 
even during these difficult times . 

The financial statements that follow are prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles established 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board . These principles are recommended by the American Institute 
of  Certified Public Accountants and the National Association of  College and University Business Officers .

The Utah State Auditor’s Office has audited the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2010 . Their de-
finitive opinion is included with this report . The financial highlights and statements are intended to establish the 
University’s financial position as of  June 30, 2010 . They are also intended to reflect the flow of  financial resources 
to the University during the fiscal year 2009-2010, while disclosing how these resources are applied in accomplish-
ing our mission . We are pleased to share this report with you .

Stan L . Albrecht
President
Utah State University

| MESSAGE FROM ThE PRESIDENT
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Independent State Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees, Audit Committee 
 and 
Stan L. Albrecht, President 
Utah State University 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Utah State University (hereinafter 
referred to as the “University”), a component unit of the State of Utah, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2010, as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the University's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements of the Utah State University 
Research Foundation, which represents approximately 4% of total assets and 11% of total revenues of 
the University.  Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has 
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Utah State 
University Research Foundation, is based on the report of the other auditors.  The prior year partial 
comparative information has been derived from the University’s 2009 financial statements and, in our 
report dated November 19, 2009, we expressed an unqualified opinion on the basic financial 
statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement.  An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over 
financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the University as of June 30, 
2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 
18, 2010 on our consideration of the University's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
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tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit. 

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it. 

Auston G. Johnson, CPA 
Utah State Auditor 
November 18, 2010 
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maNagEmENT’S
diSCuSSiON
aNd aNalySiS

This section provides an overview of  the 
University’s financial activities in the cur-

rent year compared to the prior year . Total 
assets and liabilities are presented, as well as 
the change in net assets from the prior year . 
Revenues, expenses, appropriations from the 
state, contributions, etc ., are analyzed and dis-
cussed . The cash activity is also summarized to 
show the change in cash from the prior year to 
the current year . 

<< Bingham EntrEprEnEurship and EnErgy 
rEsEarch cEntEr: Located at the USU Uintah 
Basin campus in Vernal, Utah, the Bingham 
Entrepreneurship and Energy Research Center 
is a high-tech educational facility that will train 
students in business, entrepreneurship, water 
management, natural resources, and other pro-
grams. The new facility will address the environ-
mental, political, financial, and technological 
issues relative to the secure and sustainable de-
velopment of Utah’s natural resources and the 
enhancement of Utah’s new business creation.



iNTrOduCTiON 

The following unaudited Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) includes an analysis of  the financial 
condition and results of  activities of  Utah State Univer-
sity (University) for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 
2010 . The analysis includes the University’s condensed 
and comparative Statement of  Net Assets; Statement 
of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and 
Statement of  Cash Flows along with related graphs and 
comparative data . Also included is management’s per-
spective of  the University’s economic outlook .

The University is a component unit of  the State of  Utah .  
The financial statements include the accounts of  Utah 
State University Agricultural Experiment Station, Utah 
State University Water Research Laboratory, Utah State 
University Cooperative Extension Service, Utah State 
University Uintah Basin Regional Campus, Utah State 
University Southeast Region, Utah State University Tooele 
Regional Campus, and Utah State University Brigham City 
Regional Campus, which are entities separately funded by 
state appropriations .

The Utah State University Research Foundation and the 
Utah State University Development Foundation, compo-
nent units of  the University, have also been consolidated 
in these financial statements . The Utah State University 
Research Foundation is governed by a Board of  Trustees 
appointed by the President of  Utah State University, under 
the direction of  the University’s Board of  Trustees . The 
Utah State University Research Foundation is a dependent 
foundation of  Utah State University . It is reported as a 
part of  the University because its primary purpose is to 
support the mission of  Utah State University in regards 
to research . The Utah State University Development 
Foundation is also governed by a Board of  Trustees ap-
pointed by the President of  the University .  The Utah State 
University Development Foundation is a dependent foun-
dation of  Utah State University and serves as the main 
fund-raising arm of  the University .

The Utah State University Research Foundation annually 
publishes audited financial statements . A copy of  the audit-
ed financial statements can be obtained from the Utah State 
University Research Foundation, 1695 North Research 
Parkway, North Logan, Utah 84341 . 

OvErviEw Of fiNaNCial 
STaTEmENTS aNd 
fiNaNCial aNalySiS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed 
to provide an easily readable analysis of  the University’s 
financial activities based on facts, decisions, and conditions 
known at the date of  the auditor’s report .  The University’s 
financial statements for fiscal year 2010 with fiscal year 
2009 prior year data presented for comparative purposes, 
are presented beginning on page 21 . The financial state-
ments, footnotes, and this discussion are the responsibility 
of  management . This annual report consists of  a series 
of  financial statements, prepared in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No . 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities. These fi-
nancial statements focus on the financial condition of  the 
University, the results of  operations and cash flows of  the 
University as a whole . There are three financial statements 
presented:  the Statement of  Net Assets; the Statement of  
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and the 
Statement of  Cash Flows .

STaTEmENT Of NET aSSETS
 
The Statement of  Net Assets outlines the University’s fi-
nancial condition at fiscal year end . This statement re-
flects the various assets, liabilities, and net assets of  the 
University as of  the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 .

From the data presented, readers of  the Statement of  Net 
Assets have the information to determine the assets avail-
able to continue the operations of  the University . They 
may also be able to determine how much the University 
owes vendors, investors, and lending institutions . Finally, 
the Statement of  Net Assets outlines the net assets (assets 
minus liabilities) available to the University and defines that 
availability .

Net assets are divided into three major categories . The first 
category, Invested in capital assets, net of  debt, reflects 
the University’s equity in property, plant, and equipment 
owned by the University .  The second category, Restricted 
net assets, is further divided into two sub-categories:  Non-
expendable and Expendable . The corpus of  non-expend-
able restricted resources as it pertains to endowments is 
only available for investment purposes .  Donors have pri-
marily restricted income derived from these investments 
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In fiscal year 2010, the University’s total net assets increased 
$60,915,200 (9 .24%) . The increase reflects an increase in 
gifts of  $27 million, a decrease in the operating loss of  $34 
million, and an increase in investment income of  $17 million, 
with an offsetting decrease in state appropriations of  $10 
million . Total assets increased $58,159,061 (6 .58%) while 
total liabilities decreased $2,756,139 (1 .23%) . Current as-
sets went down $17 million while non-current assets in-
creased $75 million . This is explained by the increases men-
tioned above as well as cash and short-term investments 

being shifted to long-term investments to take advantage of  
better returns .  Current liabilities increased $9 million while 
non-current liabilities decreased by $12 million . The in-
crease in current liabilities is due to more deferred revenues 
in contract and grant accounts and an increased amount 
due to the Utah Division of  Facilities and Construction 
Management (DFCM) for managed projects . Long-term 
liabilities decreased due to the normal annual payments of  
principal on existing debt and early-retirement payments .  
 

to fund scholarships and fellowships .  The corpus of  non-
expendable restricted resources as it pertains to loan funds 
is only available for the purpose of  issuing loans to stu-
dents under the terms of  the various donor and federal 
government agreements . Expendable restricted net assets 
are available for expenditure by the University but must be 

spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or exter-
nal entities that have placed time or purpose restrictions on 
the use of  the assets . The last category, Unrestricted net 
assets, discloses the net assets available to the University to 
be used for any lawful purpose of  the University .

	  

CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  NET	  ASSETS

June	  30,	  2010	  	   June	  30,	  2009	  	   Change	  	   %	  Change

AssetsAssets

Current	  assetsCurrent	  assetsCurrent	  assetsCurrent	  assets $137,635,025	   $154,942,142	   ($17,307,117) -‐11.17%

Non-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assets

Capital	  assets	  –	  netCapital	  assets	  –	  netCapital	  assets	  –	  netCapital	  assets	  –	  net 526,139,678	   490,662,503	   35,477,175	   7.23%

OtherOther 278,455,006	   238,466,003	   39,989,003	   16.77%

Total	  assetsTotal	  assetsTotal	  assets 942,229,709	   884,070,648	   58,159,061	   6.58%

LiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilities

Current	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilities 88,267,656	   79,064,122	   9,203,534	   11.64%

Non-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilities 133,614,851	   145,574,524	   (11,959,673) -‐8.22%

Total	  liabilitiesTotal	  liabilitiesTotal	  liabilities 221,882,507	   224,638,646	   (2,756,139) -‐1.23%

Net	  assetsNet	  assetsNet	  assets

Invested	  in	  capital	  assets,	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets,	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets,	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets,	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets,	  net	  of	  debt 413,015,426	   383,603,073	   29,412,353	   7.67%

Restricted	  –	  non-‐expendableRestricted	  –	  non-‐expendableRestricted	  –	  non-‐expendableRestricted	  –	  non-‐expendableRestricted	  –	  non-‐expendable

Primarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships	  	  	  Primarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships	  	  	  Primarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships	  	  	  Primarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships	  	  	   72,744,956	   65,657,240	   7,087,716	   10.80%

LoansLoans 13,152,800	   13,011,190	   141,610	   1.09%

Restricted	  –	  expendableRestricted	  –	  expendableRestricted	  –	  expendableRestricted	  –	  expendableRestricted	  –	  expendable 129,365,919	   128,001,818	   1,364,101	   1.07%

Unrestricted	  Unrestricted	  Unrestricted	  Unrestricted	   92,068,101	   69,158,681	   22,909,420	   33.13%

Total	  net	  assetsTotal	  net	  assetsTotal	  net	  assets $720,347,202	   $659,432,002	   $60,915,200	   9.24%
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Composition of the University's Net Assets 
Balance at June 30, 2010 – $720,347,202 

57.3%

18.0%

11.9%

12.8%

Invested in capital
assets, net of debt
$413,015,426

Restricted
expendable

$129,365,919

Unrestricted
$92,068,101

Restricted
non-expendable

$85,897,756

The composition of  the University’s net assets is displayed 
in the following graph:

Changes in total net assets as presented in the Statement 
of  Net Assets are based on the activity presented in the 
Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets . The purpose of  this statement is to present the 
revenues received by the University, both operating and 
non-operating, and the expenses paid by the University, 
operating and non-operating, and any other revenues, ex-
penses, gains, and losses received or expended by the 
University .

Operating revenues are received for providing goods and 
services to the various customers and constituencies of  
the University . Operating expenses are those expenses paid 
to acquire or produce the goods and services provided in 
return for the operating revenues, and to carry out the 

mission of  the University . Non-operating revenues are 
revenues received for which goods and services are not 
provided . For example, state appropriations are non-oper-
ating revenues because they are provided by the Legislature 
to the University without the Legislature directly receiv-
ing commensurate goods and services in return for those 
revenues . As noted below, without the non-operating rev-
enues, in particular the state appropriations, private gifts, 
and financial aid grants and contracts the University would 
not be able to cover its costs of  operations . These sources 
are critical to the University’s financial stability and direct-
ly impact the quality of  its programs . In fiscal year 2010, 
funding from these sources were adequate to cover all of  
the University’s costs of  operations . 
 

STaTEmENT Of rEvENuES, 
ExpENSES,  aNd ChaNgES iN 
NET aSSETS
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The Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets (SRECNA) reflects a $60,915,200 increase in net 
assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 .

The University experienced a net operating loss in fis-
cal year 2010 of  $184,523,490 . This operating loss 
highlights the University’s dependency on non-operating 
revenues, state appropriations, and private gifts to meet 
its cost of  operations and provide funds for the acquisi-
tion of  capital equipment . 

Tuition and fee revenues were up $5,839,531 (7 .94%) re-
flecting the continued increase in enrollment as well as in-
creases in tuition rates to meet budget needs . 
  
Income from contracts, grants, and federal appropriations 
shows a net increase of  $9,525,099 (7 .26%): $10 .5 mil-
lion of  the increase came from federal appropriations and 

grants, $1 .7 million from state grants, with a decrease of  
$2 .7 million in other grants . The ongoing efforts of  the 
research team and the strong reputation of  the University 
resulted in these significant increases in spite of  the strug-
gling economy .

The increase in auxiliary enterprises revenue, $2,802,879 
(8 .39%), is due to an increase in student fees for athletics 
and ongoing improvement in occupancy rates in student 
housing .

State appropriations were down $10,650,782 (7 .18%) 
from 2009 reflecting the budget reductions imposed by 
the Legislature in its regular session in January 2009 . This 
reduction, along with the $11,989,359 (7 .48%) budget re-
duction from the prior year illustrates the effects that the 
recession has had on the University’s budget .
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CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETSCONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS

Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	   Fiscal	  Year	  2009	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2009	  	   Change	  	   %	  Change%	  Change

Operating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenues

Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (net	  of	  scholarship	  allowances:	  

	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874)	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874)	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874)	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874)	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874)	  	  	  	  2010	  –	  $39,624,273;	  FY2009	  –	  $34,707,874) $79,415,437	  	   $73,575,906	  	   $5,839,531	  	   7.94%

Contracts,	  grants,	  and	  federal	  appropriationsContracts,	  grants,	  and	  federal	  appropriationsContracts,	  grants,	  and	  federal	  appropriationsContracts,	  grants,	  and	  federal	  appropriationsContracts,	  grants,	  and	  federal	  appropriations 140,753,874	  	   131,228,775	  	   9,525,099	  	   7.26%

Auxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprises 36,209,000	  	   33,406,121	  	   2,802,879	  	   8.39%

OtherOther 30,257,469	  	   29,798,475	  	   458,994	  	   1.54%

Total	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenues 286,635,780	  	   268,009,277	  	   18,626,503	  	   6.95%

Operating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expenses

Salaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wages 221,211,980	  	   222,774,224	  	   (1,562,244) -‐0.70%

Employee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefits 71,238,262	  	   96,799,960	  	   (25,561,698) -‐26.41%

Other	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expenses 115,517,481	  	   111,242,810	  	   4,274,671	   3.84%

Scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowships 30,940,225	  	   24,120,941	  	   6,819,284	   28.27%

DepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciation 32,251,322	  	   31,746,087	  	   505,235	   1.59%

Total	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expenses 471,159,270	  	   486,684,022	  	   (15,524,752) -‐3.19%

Operating	  lossOperating	  lossOperating	  loss (184,523,490)	   (218,674,745)	   34,151,255	   15.62%

CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)

Fiscal	  Year	  2010Fiscal	  Year	  2010 Fiscal	  Year	  2009Fiscal	  Year	  2009 Change %	  Change%	  Change
Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriations $137,605,401 $148,256,183 ($10,650,782) -‐7.18%

Private	  giftsPrivate	  giftsPrivate	  gifts 16,040,243	   3,074,281	   12,965,962	   421.76%

Financial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contracts 32,110,860	   21,291,844	   10,819,016	   50.81%

OtherOther 34,190,194	   10,669,811	   23,520,383	   220.44%

Net	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenues 219,946,698	  	   183,292,119	  	   36,654,579	   20.00%

Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  

revenues/(expenses)revenues/(expenses) 35,423,208	  	   (35,382,626) 70,805,834	   200.11%

Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposes 6,400,108	  	   15,793,979	  	   (9,393,871) -‐59.48%

Grants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposes 20,184,202	  	   4,625,690	  	   15,558,512	   336.35%

Additions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowments 3,394,684	  	   5,510,394	  	   (2,115,710) -‐38.39%

Other	  –	  netOther	  –	  netOther	  –	  net (4,487,002)	   (4,614,716)	   127,714	   2.77%

Net	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenues 25,491,992	  	   21,315,347	  	   4,176,645	   19.59%

Increase/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assets 60,915,200	  	   (14,067,279) 74,982,479	   533.03%

Net	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  year 659,432,002	  	   673,499,281	  	   (14,067,279) -‐2.09%

Net	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  year $720,347,202	  	   $659,432,002 $60,915,200	   9.24%

continued on next page...



Revenues from private gifts rebounded in 2010 showing an 
increase of  $12,965,962 (421 .76%), as well as an increase 
of  $15,558,512 (336 .35%) in grants, contracts, and gifts 
for capital purposes . These increases are a result of  the 
University’s ongoing efforts in its capital campaign, with 
the donation of  the Swaner EcoCenter in Park City, Utah, 
being the largest gift received this past year .

Financial aid grants and contracts revenue shows an in-
crease of  $10,819,016 (50 .81%) . This is a result of  in-
creased enrollment and the higher levels of  federal and 
state financial aid awarded to students this year . An increase 

in scholarships and fellowships of  $6,819,284 (28 .27%) 
corresponds to the increased enrollment numbers as 
higher payments were made to more students .

Other non-operating revenue increased by $23,520,383 
(220 .44%), mostly due to the rebound of  the earnings 
on investments of  over $17 million as the market condi-
tions improved during fiscal year 2010 . Funds from the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) also 
increased significantly this year, by $9,112,553 (154 .74%), 
as the budget reductions from the State were backfilled 
using these federal funds .
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CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)CONDENSED	  STATEMENT	  OF	  REVENUES,	  EXPENSES,	  AND	  CHANGES	  IN	  NET	  ASSETS	  (continued)

Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  	   Fiscal	  Year	  2009	  	  Fiscal	  Year	  2009	  	   Change	  	   %	  Change%	  Change

Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriations $137,605,401	  	   $148,256,183	  	   ($10,650,782)	   -‐7.18%

Private	  giftsPrivate	  giftsPrivate	  gifts 16,040,243	  	   3,074,281	  	   12,965,962	  	   421.76%

Financial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contracts 32,110,860	  	   21,291,844	  	   10,819,016	  	   50.81%

OtherOther 34,190,194	  	   10,669,811	  	   23,520,383	  	   220.44%

Net	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenuesNet	  non-‐operating	  revenues 219,946,698	  	   183,292,119	  	   36,654,579	  	   20.00%

Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  

	  	  	  revenues/(expenses)	  	  	  revenues/(expenses)	  	  	  revenues/(expenses) 35,423,208	  	   (35,382,626)	   70,805,834	  	   200.11%

Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposes 6,400,108	  	   15,793,979	  	   (9,393,871)	   -‐59.48%

Grants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesGrants,	  contracts,	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposes 20,184,202	  	   4,625,690	  	   15,558,512	  	   336.35%

Additions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowments 3,394,684	  	   5,510,394	  	   (2,115,710)	   -‐38.39%

Other	  –	  netOther	  –	  netOther	  –	  net (4,487,002)	   (4,614,716)	   127,714	  	   2.77%

Net	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenues 25,491,992	  	   21,315,347	  	   4,176,645	  	   19.59%

Increase/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assets 60,915,200	  	   (14,067,279)	   74,982,479	  	   533.03%

Net	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  year 659,432,002	  	   673,499,281	  	   (14,067,279)	   -‐2.09%

Net	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  year $720,347,202	  	   $659,432,002	  	   $60,915,200	  	   9.24%



Total operating expenses declined $15,524,752 (3 .19%) in 
2010 mostly because of  the higher than normal and one-
time expenses in the prior year (2009) which were related to 
the implementation of  the voluntary Separation Incentive 
Program (vSIP), where funds were expended to strategi-
cally position the University to deal with ongoing budget 
cuts . The expenditures for the vSIP were reflected in the 
increased cost of  employee benefits in 2009 with an obvi-
ous decrease from 2009 seen in 2010 employee benefits . 
Expenditures for the vSIP in fiscal year 2009 will yield sav-
ings over the next several years that will assist the University 
in meeting the ongoing budget reductions .

 
 
 
 
The following graph reflects the University’s sources of  
revenue available to meet current operating costs:

Revenues Used for Operating Expenses for Fiscal Year 2010
(Operating Revenues $286,635,780,  Non-Operating Revenues $219,946,698)

Total $506,582,478
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The graph below outlines the University’s 
operating expenses by object:

Operating Expenses 

Fiscal Year 2010 $471,159,270

62.1%

6.8%

24.5%

6.6%

Employee compensation
$292,450,242

Depreciation
$32,251,322

Scholarships and
fellowships

$30,940,225

Other operating
expenses

$115,517,481

STaTEmENT Of  
CaSh flOwS 

The final statement presented by Utah State University 
is the Statement of  Cash Flows . The Statement of  Cash 
Flows presents detailed information about the cash activity 
of  the University during the fiscal year . The statement is 
divided into five sections . The first section deals with op-
erating cash flows and shows the net cash used by operat-
ing activities . The second section includes cash flows from 
non-capital financing activities . This section includes the 
cash received and spent for non-operating, non-investing, 
and non-capital financing purposes . The third section in-
cludes cash flows from capital and related financing activi-
ties . This section includes the cash used for the acquisition 

and construction of  capital and related  items . The fourth 
section includes the cash flows from investing activities 
and shows the purchases, proceeds, and interest received 
from investing activities . A condensed version of  these first 
four sections is provided on the following page . The fifth 
section of  the Statement of  Cash Flows is not included in 
the Condensed Statement of  Cash Flows, which reconciles 
the net cash used for operations to the operating  income 
or loss reflected on the Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets . This reconciliation is available 
for review in the Statement of  Cash Flows on page 25 .  
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The University’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by 
$5,525,653 to a total of  $37,977,484 . This decrease was primar-
ily due to an increased use of  cash to purchase investments 
and capital assets .    

CapiTal  aSSET aNd dEbT 
admiNiSTraTiON  

The Emma Eccles Jones Early Childhood Education and 
Research Center was completed in September 2010 at a 
total cost of  approximately $17 million . The center will be 
home to progressive programs and research in early child-
hood education . This 60,000 square-foot facility is located 
adjacent to the existing Emma Eccles Jones Education 
Building on campus . Although the revenue bonds issued 
to fund this project are secured by a pledge of  Facilities and 
Administration cost recovery (Indirect Cost Recovery) rev-
enue, it is anticipated that the debt service of  the bonds will 
be covered by private donations over a period of  10 years .

A ribbon cutting was held Wednesday, September 8, 2010, 
to mark the official opening of  Utah State University’s 
College of  Agriculture Equine Education Center . The cen-
ter was built in response to the high demand for equine 
education throughout the western region, with the first 
phase taking less than one year to complete . The first 
phase, which includes an indoor arena, horse stables, and 
covered hay shed is completed . Future phases include a 

building to house classrooms and offices, indoor and out-
door round pens, and an outdoor arena . The facility, once 
fully built, will cover 26 acres and have a total interior of  
75,000 square-feet . The physical facilities will be surround-
ed by a bridle path that allows users to enjoy one of  the 
most beautiful locations in Utah . 

The Utah Science Technology and Research (USTAR) 
BioInnovations Complex was completed in October 2010 
with occupancy set for December 2010 .  USTAR teams 
such as the Center for Advanced Nutrition, veterinary 
Diagnostics and Infectious Disease, and the Synthetic Bio-
Manufacturing Center will be the initial occupants . This 
110,000 square-foot facility is designed to foster collabora-
tive relationships among all USU life sciences researchers, 
industry, and other higher education institutions . It is a 
Leadership in Energy and Environment Design (LEED) 
Gold designated building . The USTAR Initiative is a long-
term, state-funded investment to strengthen research in 
the state of  Utah with the goal of  generating high-paying 
jobs . USTAR’s economic impact at USU includes the cre-
ation of  100 jobs as well as the filing of  56 invention dis-
closures and 16 patents .
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Fiscal	  Year	  2010	  Fiscal	  Year	  2010	   Fiscal	  Year	  2009	  Fiscal	  Year	  2009	   Change	   %	  Change%	  Change

Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:Cash	  provided/(used)	  by:

(1)	  Operating	  activities(1)	  Operating	  activities(1)	  Operating	  activities(1)	  Operating	  activities(1)	  Operating	  activities ($152,877,905) ($165,937,477) $13,059,572	   7.87%

(2)	  Non-‐capital	  financing	  activities	  (2)	  Non-‐capital	  financing	  activities	  (2)	  Non-‐capital	  financing	  activities	  (2)	  Non-‐capital	  financing	  activities	  (2)	  Non-‐capital	  financing	  activities	   200,818,454	   195,623,292	   5,195,162	   2.66%

(3)	  Capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities(3)	  Capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities(3)	  Capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities(3)	  Capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities(3)	  Capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities (40,887,127) (12,997,109) (27,890,018) -‐214.59%

(4)	  Investing	  activities(4)	  Investing	  activities(4)	  Investing	  activities(4)	  Investing	  activities(4)	  Investing	  activities (12,579,075) 10,451,499	   (23,030,574) -‐220.36%

Net	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents (5,525,653) 27,140,205	   (32,665,858) -‐120.36%

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year	   43,503,137	   16,362,932	   27,140,205	   165.86%

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	  Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year	   $37,977,484	   $43,503,137	   ($5,525,653) -‐12.70%
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The Marc C . Bingham Entrepreneurship and Energy 
Research Center was completed in September 2010 at a 
total cost of  $23 .4 million . The 70,000 square-foot facility, 
located in vernal, Utah, is a state-of-the-art, high-tech-edu-
cational facility that will train students in business, engineer-
ing, water management, natural resources, environmental 
policy, and other programs . The building houses 11 class-
rooms equipped with interactive video capabilities necessary 
for USU’s Distance Education programs . The academic 
wing has space for student support services, including reg-
istration, advising and academic administration, and will 
also host entrepreneurs who wish to incubate their business 
endeavors . This building will provide employees with the 
facilities required to focus on energy research and teaching 
initiatives that are important to the Uintah Basin area as 
well as the State and is intended to capitalize on the op-
portunities that currently exist within the local community .

The new College of  Agriculture building is under con-
struction on the east end of  Utah State University’s historic 
Quad . The groundbreaking ceremony for the $43 million 
building occurred in May 2010 with completion projected 
to be the Spring of  2012 . The 125,000 square-foot build-
ing will feature two main sections . The first will be com-
prised of  three stories of  high-tech laboratories and re-
search space to be used by students and faculty . It will also 
house a new university-operated computer lab, lecture and 
classroom space, and public areas . The second section is 
a four-story structure that will face south and house the 
faculty and administrative offices, replacing the existing 
E .G . Peterson Agricultural Science Building, constructed 
in 1955 . The building will also bring Famous Aggie Ice 
Cream back to the Quad in a new ground-level café .

 
 

USU is home to 10 of the last 16 Carnegie 
Professors of the Year in Utah. Laurie McNeill, an 
engineering professor, received the honor in 2010. 



On October 6, 2009, the University issued its Student Fee 
and housing System Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 
2009 in the amount of  $8 .13 million for the purpose of  
refunding in advance of  their maturity the Series 1999A 
Student Fee and housing System Revenue Refunding 
Bonds that were previously issued . This refunding result-
ed in an increase of  $57,276 in the net carrying amount 
of  the refunded debt, a reduction in the future debt ser-
vice payments of  $629,792, and an economic gain (differ-
ence between the present value of  the old and new debt 
service payments) of  $603,442 .
 
On July 28, 2010, the University’s $11,070,000 Series 2010 
Research Revenue Bonds were issued for the purpose of  
refunding in advance of  their maturity a portion of  the 
Series 2002A Research Revenue Bonds that were previ-
ously issued . This refunding resulted in an increase of  
$1,072,925 in the net carrying amount of  the refunded 
debt, a reduction in the future debt service payments of  
$618,863, and an economic gain (difference between the 
present value of  the old and new debt service payments) 
of  $575,514 .

ECONOmiC OuTlOOk

After enduring a series of  ongoing and one-time bud-
get cuts imposed by the State Legislature to rebalance 
the state budget, the fiscal year 2010 legislative session 
brought some welcomed budget relief .   By the end of  the 
session, approximately 4 percent of  the total 17 percent 
ongoing budget cut levied over the past two years had 
been restored on a permanent basis .  Since the University 
had already identified and was implementing the entire 
17 percent ($27 .5 million) budget cut, the restoration was 
especially significant as it provided an opportunity to stra-
tegically allocate the new funds .

The appropriation of  new funds is a strong indication that 
legislators believe the economic decline in the State has 
reached the bottom and that no additional budget cuts will 
be necessary .  In addition, the State of  Utah ended fiscal 
year 2010 with a modest budget deficit that was easily re-
solved at the state level .  The State of  Utah appears to be 
in a strong financial position relative to many other states 
and we expect increased State support moving forward .

 
 

Utah State University marked another enrollment mile-
stone in its 122-year history with a record fall headcount 
of  25,767 students, up 702 students from a year ago . That 
includes a record number of  first-time students entering 
college on the Logan campus of  3,125 and a record high 
number of  students enrolled at USU’s regional campuses 
and distance education centers, including Brigham City, 
Southeastern Utah, Tooele, and the Uintah Basin totaling 
12,109 .  Looking forward, the University expects enroll-
ment growth to continue with strong increases in students 
at the regional campuses and more modest gains on the 
Logan main campus .

On July 1, 2010, the College of  Eastern Utah officially be-
came part of  the Utah State University system and will be 
known as Utah State University-College of  Eastern Utah 
(USU-CEU) .  The new union will secure and advance the 
mission of  both institutions and will greatly benefit the 
Southeastern Region of  the State .  For example, we look 
forward to new opportunities for research, particularly in 
energy development . USU-CEU recorded a 21 percent 
increase in enrollment, up nearly 500 students from a year 
ago for a total of  2,634 . This continues the optimism 
shared by the two institutions in the ability to meet the 
educational needs of  the region and to have a vital impact 
on the economy .  In addition to USU-CEU in Price, the 
San Juan Campus in Blanding enrolls more than 
500 students .
 
The University has a diverse source of  revenues, includ-
ing those from the State of  Utah, student tuition and 
fees, sponsored research programs, private support, 
and self-supporting enterprises . This diversity of  rev-
enues continues to provide financial stability and sig-
nificant protection against potentially difficult future 
economic times .

Management believes that USU’s financial position will 
continue to enable the University to move forward and 
accomplish its mission of  being one of  the nation’s pre-
mier student-centered, land-grant, and space-grant 
universities .      
    

David T . Cowley
vice President for Business and Finance   
Utah State University    
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Utah State University marked another enrollment milestone  
in its 122-year history with a record Fall 2010 headcount of  
25,767 students, up 702 students from a year ago.
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The financial statements consist of  the 
Statement of  Net Assets; the Statement 

of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net  
Assets; and the Statement of  Cash Flows . 
Each statement presents a different financial 
perspective of  the University for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2010 .  

fiNaNCial  
STaTEmENTS

<< Emma EcclEs JonEs Early childhood 
Education and rEsEarch cEntEr and 
dolorEs doré EcclEs cEntEr for Early carE 
and Education :  The building is home to 
progressive programs and research in early 
childhood education and will offer educational 
opportunities for students, as well as applicable 
experience and research for undergraduate 
and graduate students. The new facility also pro-
vides much-needed early care and education 
facilities for infants and young children whose 
parents are USU students, staff, or faculty.



See notes to financial statements

2010 2009	  Comparative	  Only2009	  Comparative	  Only

AssetsAssets

Current	  assetsCurrent	  assetsCurrent	  assetsCurrent	  assets

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D)Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D)Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D)Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D) $34,949,149	   $40,260,836	  

Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D)Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D)Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D)Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D) 39,633,452	   48,343,672	  

Accounts	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $1,063,861	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $1,063,861	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $1,063,861	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $1,063,861	  (Note	  E)

From	  primary	  governmentFrom	  primary	  governmentFrom	  primary	  government 5,328,540	   5,035,388	  

From	  othersFrom	  othersFrom	  others 48,911,367	   53,395,265	  

Credits	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Credits	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Credits	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Credits	  receivable	  (Note	  E) 335,179	   398,106	  

Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $33,379	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $33,379	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $33,379	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $33,379	  (Note	  E) 1,785,798	   1,200,187	  

Inventories	  (Note	  A)Inventories	  (Note	  A)Inventories	  (Note	  A)Inventories	  (Note	  A) 4,742,880	   4,371,833	  

Prepaid	  expensesPrepaid	  expensesPrepaid	  expensesPrepaid	  expenses 1,948,660	   1,936,855	  

Total	  current	  assetsTotal	  current	  assets 137,635,025	   154,942,142	  

Non-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assetsNon-‐current	  assets

RestrictedRestrictedRestricted

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D)Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D)Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents	  (Notes	  A,	  B,	  and	  D) 3,028,335	   3,242,301	  

Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D)Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D)Short-‐term	  investments	  (Notes	  B	  and	  D) 5,073,949	   5,613,218	  

Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D)Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D)Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D) 63,877,530	   55,288,678	  

Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E) 1,577,635	   916,656	  

Real	  estate	  held	  for	  resaleReal	  estate	  held	  for	  resaleReal	  estate	  held	  for	  resale 650,000	   1,144,530	  

Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E)Accounts	  receivable	  (Note	  E) 36,633,436	   30,797,274	  

Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $203,040	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $203,040	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $203,040	  (Note	  E)Notes	  receivable	  –	  net	  of	  allowances	  $203,040	  (Note	  E) 10,328,253	   11,259,772	  

Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D)Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D)Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D)Investments	  (Notes	  C	  and	  D) 156,985,468	   130,203,574	  

Real	  estate	  held	  for	  resaleReal	  estate	  held	  for	  resaleReal	  estate	  held	  for	  resaleReal	  estate	  held	  for	  resale 300,400	   -‐	  	  

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  -‐	  net	  (Note	  F)Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  -‐	  net	  (Note	  F)Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  -‐	  net	  (Note	  F)Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  -‐	  net	  (Note	  F) 526,139,678	   490,662,503	  

Total	  non-‐current	  assetsTotal	  non-‐current	  assets 804,594,684	   729,128,506	  

Total	  assets 942,229,709	   884,070,648	  

LiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilities

Current	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilitiesCurrent	  liabilities

Accounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  liabilities	  (Note	  G)Accounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  liabilities	  (Note	  G)Accounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  liabilities	  (Note	  G)Accounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  liabilities	  (Note	  G)

To	  primary	  governmentTo	  primary	  governmentTo	  primary	  government 7,960,444	   4,046,386	  

To	  othersTo	  othersTo	  others 39,139,753	   36,336,662	  

Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H) 10,698,154	   9,348,661	  

Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H) 5,443,002	   6,623,080	  

Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H) 18,042,156	   16,051,422	  

Funds	  held	  for	  othersFunds	  held	  for	  othersFunds	  held	  for	  othersFunds	  held	  for	  others 578,748	   471,408	  

Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I) 6,405,399	   6,186,503	  

Total	  current	  liabilitiesTotal	  current	  liabilities 88,267,656	   79,064,122	  

Non-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilitiesNon-‐current	  liabilities

Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  compensated	  absences	  (Note	  H) 5,100,787	   5,498,370	  

Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H)Liability	  for	  early	  retirement	  (Note	  H) 12,443,768	   18,909,053	  

Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H)Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other	  (Note	  H) 1,046,272	   540,000	  

Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I)Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable	  (Notes	  H	  and	  I) 115,024,024	   120,627,101	  

Total	  non-‐current	  liabilitiesTotal	  non-‐current	  liabilities 133,614,851	   145,574,524	  

Total	  liabilities 221,882,507	   224,638,646	  

Net	  assetsNet	  assetsNet	  assets

Invested	  in	  capital	  assets	  –	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets	  –	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets	  –	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets	  –	  net	  of	  debtInvested	  in	  capital	  assets	  –	  net	  of	  debt 413,015,426	   383,603,073	  

Restricted	  forRestricted	  forRestricted	  for

Non-‐expendableNon-‐expendableNon-‐expendableNon-‐expendable

Primarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPrimarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPrimarily	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships 72,744,956	   65,657,240	  

LoansLoans 13,152,800	   13,011,190	  

ExpendableExpendableExpendable

Research,	  instruction,	  and	  public	  service	  Research,	  instruction,	  and	  public	  service	  Research,	  instruction,	  and	  public	  service	   122,639,158	   109,911,721	  

Capital	  projectsCapital	  projectsCapital	  projects 6,726,761	   18,090,097	  

UnrestrictedUnrestrictedUnrestricted 92,068,101	   69,158,681	  

Total	  net	  assets $720,347,202	   $659,432,002	  22
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See notes to financial statements

2010 2009	  Comparative	  Only2009	  Comparative	  Only

Operating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenuesOperating	  revenues

Tuition	  and	  fees	  (Net	  of	  scholarship	  allowance	  of	  $39,624,273)	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (Net	  of	  scholarship	  allowance	  of	  $39,624,273)	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (Net	  of	  scholarship	  allowance	  of	  $39,624,273)	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (Net	  of	  scholarship	  allowance	  of	  $39,624,273)	  Tuition	  and	  fees	  (Net	  of	  scholarship	  allowance	  of	  $39,624,273)	   $79,415,437	   $73,575,906	  

Federal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriations 4,692,578	   4,603,659	  

Federal	  grants	  and	  contractsFederal	  grants	  and	  contractsFederal	  grants	  and	  contractsFederal	  grants	  and	  contractsFederal	  grants	  and	  contracts 112,476,274	   102,054,236	  

State	  grants	  and	  contractsState	  grants	  and	  contractsState	  grants	  and	  contractsState	  grants	  and	  contractsState	  grants	  and	  contracts 9,252,077	   7,549,631	  

Local	  grants	  and	  contractsLocal	  grants	  and	  contractsLocal	  grants	  and	  contractsLocal	  grants	  and	  contractsLocal	  grants	  and	  contracts 2,039,052	   2,146,996	  

Private	  grants	  and	  contractsPrivate	  grants	  and	  contractsPrivate	  grants	  and	  contractsPrivate	  grants	  and	  contractsPrivate	  grants	  and	  contracts 12,293,893	   14,874,253	  

Sales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departments 10,100,695	   10,401,322	  

Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit) 4,550,684	   3,881,641	  

Service	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departments 2,516,623	   2,540,407	  

Auxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprises 36,209,000	   33,406,121	  

OtherOther 13,089,467	   12,975,105	  

Total	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenuesTotal	  operating	  revenues 286,635,780	   268,009,277	  

Operating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expenses

Salaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wagesSalaries	  and	  wages 221,211,980	   222,774,224	  

Employee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefitsEmployee	  benefits 71,238,262	   96,799,960	  

Other	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expensesOther	  operating	  expenses 115,517,481	   111,242,810	  

Scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowshipsScholarships	  and	  fellowships 30,940,225	   24,120,941	  

DepreciationDepreciationDepreciation 32,251,322	   31,746,087	  

Total	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expensesTotal	  operating	  expenses 471,159,270	   486,684,022	  

Operating	  lossOperating	  lossOperating	  loss (184,523,490) (218,674,745)

Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)Non-‐operating	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriations 137,605,401	   148,256,183	  

State	  grantsState	  grantsState	  grants 2,956,058	   6,082,178	  

State	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenues 293,586	   275,004	  

Federal	  grants	  (ARRA)Federal	  grants	  (ARRA)Federal	  grants	  (ARRA)Federal	  grants	  (ARRA)Federal	  grants	  (ARRA) 15,001,553	   5,889,000	  

Financial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contractsFinancial	  aid	  grants	  and	  contracts 32,110,860	   21,291,844	  

Private	  giftsPrivate	  giftsPrivate	  gifts 16,040,243	   3,074,281	  

Investment	  incomeInvestment	  incomeInvestment	  incomeInvestment	  incomeInvestment	  income 15,939,469	   (1,443,025)

OtherOther (472) (133,346)

Non-‐operating	  revenues	  –	  netNon-‐operating	  revenues	  –	  netNon-‐operating	  revenues	  –	  netNon-‐operating	  revenues	  –	  net 219,946,698	   183,292,119	  

Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  revenues/(expenses)Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  revenues/(expenses)Income/(loss)	  before	  other	  revenues/(expenses) 35,423,208	   (35,382,626)

Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)Other	  revenues/(expenses)

State	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposes 6,400,108	   15,793,979	  

Private	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposes 20,184,202	   4,625,690	  

Interest	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debt (4,260,580) (4,536,105)

Additions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowmentsAdditions	  to	  permanent	  endowments 3,394,684	   5,510,394	  

Other	  –	  netOther	  –	  netOther	  –	  net (226,422) (78,611)

Net	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenuesNet	  other	  revenues 25,491,992	   21,315,347	  

Increase/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assetsIncrease/(decrease)	  in	  net	  assets 60,915,200	   (14,067,279)

Net	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  beginning	  of	  year 659,432,002	   673,499,281	  

Net	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  yearNet	  assets	  –	  end	  of	  year $720,347,202	   $659,432,002	  
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2010 2009	  Comparative	  Only2009	  Comparative	  Only

Cash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  operating	  activities

Tuition	  and	  feesTuition	  and	  feesTuition	  and	  feesTuition	  and	  fees $81,096,652	   $74,478,491	  

Federal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriationsFederal	  appropriations 4,692,578	   4,603,659	  

Contracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grants 132,657,586	   131,835,537	  

Sales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departmentsSales	  and	  services	  of	  educational	  departments 10,100,695	   10,401,322	  

Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit)Conferences	  and	  institutes	  (non-‐credit) 4,550,684	   3,881,641	  

Service	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departmentsService	  departments 2,399,274	   2,859,036	  

Auxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  enterprises 36,496,010	   34,048,175	  

Other	  operating	  receiptsOther	  operating	  receiptsOther	  operating	  receiptsOther	  operating	  receiptsOther	  operating	  receipts 13,003,984	   12,873,481	  

Payments	  to	  employees	  for	  salaries	  and	  benefitsPayments	  to	  employees	  for	  salaries	  and	  benefitsPayments	  to	  employees	  for	  salaries	  and	  benefitsPayments	  to	  employees	  for	  salaries	  and	  benefitsPayments	  to	  employees	  for	  salaries	  and	  benefits 	  	   (299,067,797) 	  	   (303,086,477)

Payments	  to	  suppliersPayments	  to	  suppliersPayments	  to	  suppliersPayments	  to	  suppliersPayments	  to	  suppliers 	  	   (108,565,525) 	  	   (114,057,101)

Payments	  for	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPayments	  for	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPayments	  for	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPayments	  for	  scholarships	  and	  fellowshipsPayments	  for	  scholarships	  and	  fellowships 	  	   (30,940,225) 	  	   (24,120,941)

Loans	  issued	  to	  studentsLoans	  issued	  to	  studentsLoans	  issued	  to	  studentsLoans	  issued	  to	  studentsLoans	  issued	  to	  students 	  	   (1,345,197) 	  	   (985,972)

Loan	  payments	  received	  from	  studentsLoan	  payments	  received	  from	  studentsLoan	  payments	  received	  from	  studentsLoan	  payments	  received	  from	  studentsLoan	  payments	  received	  from	  students 2,043,376	   1,331,672	  

Net	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activities (152,877,905) (165,937,477)

Cash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activities

State	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriations 138,501,372	   147,335,784	  

State	  grantsState	  grantsState	  grants 1,946,053	   6,882,926	  

State	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenuesState	  land	  grant	  revenues 286,282	   383,579	  

Federal	  grant	  revenue	  (ARRA)Federal	  grant	  revenue	  (ARRA)Federal	  grant	  revenue	  (ARRA)Federal	  grant	  revenue	  (ARRA)Federal	  grant	  revenue	  (ARRA) 15,001,553	   5,889,000	  

Financial	  aidFinancial	  aidFinancial	  aid 32,198,823	   21,170,366	  

Private	  giftsPrivate	  giftsPrivate	  gifts 12,419,584	   13,930,579	  

Other	  additionsOther	  additionsOther	  additionsOther	  additions 464,787	   31,058	  

Net	  cash	  provided	  by	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided	  by	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided	  by	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided	  by	  non-‐capital	  financing	  activities 200,818,454	   195,623,292	  

Cash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities

State	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposesState	  appropriations	  for	  capital	  purposes 5,694,376	   10,014,258	  

Private	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposesPrivate	  grants	  and	  gifts	  for	  capital	  purposes 16,500,747	   6,228,343	  

Proceeds	  from	  capital	  debtProceeds	  from	  capital	  debtProceeds	  from	  capital	  debtProceeds	  from	  capital	  debtProceeds	  from	  capital	  debt 11,497,095	   23,764,300	  

Other	  additionsOther	  additionsOther	  additionsOther	  additions 315,292	   173,274	  

Cash	  paid	  for	  capital	  assetsCash	  paid	  for	  capital	  assetsCash	  paid	  for	  capital	  assetsCash	  paid	  for	  capital	  assetsCash	  paid	  for	  capital	  assets 	  	   (53,693,227) 	  	   (42,859,740)

Repayment	  of	  capital	  debt	  and	  leasesRepayment	  of	  capital	  debt	  and	  leasesRepayment	  of	  capital	  debt	  and	  leasesRepayment	  of	  capital	  debt	  and	  leasesRepayment	  of	  capital	  debt	  and	  leases 	  	   (16,721,722) 	  	   (5,951,047)

Interest	  paid	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  paid	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  paid	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  paid	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debtInterest	  paid	  on	  capital	  asset	  related	  debt 	  	   (4,479,688) 	  	   (4,366,497)

Net	  cash	  used	  by	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  capital	  and	  related	  financing	  activities (40,887,127) (12,997,109)

Cash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activitiesCash	  flows	  from	  investing	  activities

Purchases	  of	  investmentsPurchases	  of	  investmentsPurchases	  of	  investmentsPurchases	  of	  investmentsPurchases	  of	  investments (211,501,642) (145,098,311)

Proceeds	  from	  sale	  of	  investmentsProceeds	  from	  sale	  of	  investmentsProceeds	  from	  sale	  of	  investmentsProceeds	  from	  sale	  of	  investmentsProceeds	  from	  sale	  of	  investments 192,734,251	   149,461,787	  

Interest	  and	  dividends	  received	  from	  investmentsInterest	  and	  dividends	  received	  from	  investmentsInterest	  and	  dividends	  received	  from	  investmentsInterest	  and	  dividends	  received	  from	  investmentsInterest	  and	  dividends	  received	  from	  investments 6,188,316	   6,088,023	  

Net	  cash	  provided/(used)	  by	  investing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided/(used)	  by	  investing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided/(used)	  by	  investing	  activitiesNet	  cash	  provided/(used)	  by	  investing	  activities 	  	  (12,579,075) 10,451,499	  

Net	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalentsNet	  increase/(decrease)	  in	  cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents (5,525,653) 27,140,205	  

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  beginning	  of	  year 43,503,137	   16,362,932	  

Cash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  yearCash	  and	  cash	  equivalents,	  end	  of	  year $37,977,484	   $43,503,137	  
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2010 2009	  Comparative	  Only2009	  Comparative	  Only

Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  Reconciliation	  of	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  used	  by	  

operating	  activitiesoperating	  activitiesoperating	  activitiesoperating	  activitiesoperating	  activities

Operating	  lossOperating	  lossOperating	  lossOperating	  loss ($184,523,490) ($218,674,745)

Adjustments	  to	  reconcile	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  Adjustments	  to	  reconcile	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  Adjustments	  to	  reconcile	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  Adjustments	  to	  reconcile	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  Adjustments	  to	  reconcile	  operating	  loss	  to	  net	  cash	  

	  	  	  used	  by	  operating	  activities	  	  	  used	  by	  operating	  activities	  	  	  used	  by	  operating	  activities	  	  	  used	  by	  operating	  activities	  	  	  used	  by	  operating	  activities

Depreciation	  expenseDepreciation	  expenseDepreciation	  expenseDepreciation	  expense 32,251,322	   31,746,087	  	  

Gifts-‐in-‐kind	  and	  transfers	  reducing	  payments	  to	  suppliersGifts-‐in-‐kind	  and	  transfers	  reducing	  payments	  to	  suppliersGifts-‐in-‐kind	  and	  transfers	  reducing	  payments	  to	  suppliersGifts-‐in-‐kind	  and	  transfers	  reducing	  payments	  to	  suppliers 723,532	   846,255	  	  

Changes	  in	  assets	  and	  liabilitiesChanges	  in	  assets	  and	  liabilitiesChanges	  in	  assets	  and	  liabilitiesChanges	  in	  assets	  and	  liabilities

Accounts	  receivableAccounts	  receivableAccounts	  receivable (3,682,889) 6,056,315	  	  

InventoriesInventoriesInventories (371,047) (10,363)

Prepaid	  expensesPrepaid	  expensesPrepaid	  expenses (13,702) (737,120)

Accounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  expensesAccounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  expensesAccounts	  payable	  and	  accrued	  expenses 6,689,071	   (1,984,685)

Deferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  otherDeferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  otherDeferred	  revenues,	  deposits,	  and	  other 2,039,178	   777,126	  	  

Compensated	  absences	  and	  early	  retirementCompensated	  absences	  and	  early	  retirementCompensated	  absences	  and	  early	  retirement (6,693,453) 15,559,331	  	  

Net	  student	  loan	  activityNet	  student	  loan	  activityNet	  student	  loan	  activity 703,573	   484,322	  	  

Net	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activitiesNet	  cash	  used	  by	  operating	  activities ($152,877,905) ($165,937,477)

Non-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activitiesNon-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activities

Fixed	  assets	  acquired	  by	  incurring	  capital	  lease	  obligationsFixed	  assets	  acquired	  by	  incurring	  capital	  lease	  obligationsFixed	  assets	  acquired	  by	  incurring	  capital	  lease	  obligationsFixed	  assets	  acquired	  by	  incurring	  capital	  lease	  obligationsFixed	  assets	  acquired	  by	  incurring	  capital	  lease	  obligations $730,728	   $1,167,661	  	  

Completed	  construction	  projects	  transferred	  from	  State	  of	  UtahCompleted	  construction	  projects	  transferred	  from	  State	  of	  UtahCompleted	  construction	  projects	  transferred	  from	  State	  of	  UtahCompleted	  construction	  projects	  transferred	  from	  State	  of	  UtahCompleted	  construction	  projects	  transferred	  from	  State	  of	  Utah 568,391	   6,213,543	  	  

Change	  in	  fair	  value	  of	  investments	  recognized	  as	  a	  Change	  in	  fair	  value	  of	  investments	  recognized	  as	  a	  Change	  in	  fair	  value	  of	  investments	  recognized	  as	  a	  Change	  in	  fair	  value	  of	  investments	  recognized	  as	  a	  Change	  in	  fair	  value	  of	  investments	  recognized	  as	  a	  

	  	  	  component	  of	  investment	  income	  	  	  component	  of	  investment	  income	  	  	  component	  of	  investment	  income	  	  	  component	  of	  investment	  income	  	  	  component	  of	  investment	  income 4,993,030	   (11,754,603)

Amortization	  of	  original	  issue	  discount,	  reoffering	  Amortization	  of	  original	  issue	  discount,	  reoffering	  Amortization	  of	  original	  issue	  discount,	  reoffering	  Amortization	  of	  original	  issue	  discount,	  reoffering	  Amortization	  of	  original	  issue	  discount,	  reoffering	  

	  	  	  premium,	  and	  net	  loss	  on	  refunding	  of	  bonds	  	  	  premium,	  and	  net	  loss	  on	  refunding	  of	  bonds	  	  	  premium,	  and	  net	  loss	  on	  refunding	  of	  bonds	  	  	  premium,	  and	  net	  loss	  on	  refunding	  of	  bonds	  	  	  premium,	  and	  net	  loss	  on	  refunding	  of	  bonds (30,510) (10,821)

Bond	  issuance	  costs	  deducted	  from	  bond	  proceedsBond	  issuance	  costs	  deducted	  from	  bond	  proceedsBond	  issuance	  costs	  deducted	  from	  bond	  proceedsBond	  issuance	  costs	  deducted	  from	  bond	  proceedsBond	  issuance	  costs	  deducted	  from	  bond	  proceeds 109,864	   -‐	  	  

Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  non-‐capital	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  non-‐capital	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  non-‐capital	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  non-‐capital	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  non-‐capital	  

	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities 3,221,426	   983,726	  	  

Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  capital	  and	  related	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  capital	  and	  related	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  capital	  and	  related	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  capital	  and	  related	  Additions	  to	  pledges	  receivable	  for	  capital	  and	  related	  

	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities	  	  	  financing	  activities 29,750	   12,500	  	  

Disposal	  of	  capital	  assets	  due	  to	  write	  offDisposal	  of	  capital	  assets	  due	  to	  write	  offDisposal	  of	  capital	  assets	  due	  to	  write	  offDisposal	  of	  capital	  assets	  due	  to	  write	  offDisposal	  of	  capital	  assets	  due	  to	  write	  off (241,736)

Gifts	  of	  capital	  assetsGifts	  of	  capital	  assetsGifts	  of	  capital	  assetsGifts	  of	  capital	  assetsGifts	  of	  capital	  assets 14,008,593	   254,462	  	  

	  Total	  non-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activities	  Total	  non-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activities	  Total	  non-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activities	  Total	  non-‐cash	  investing,	  capital,	  and	  financing	  activities $23,389,536	   ($3,133,532)	  

See notes to financial statements  

STaTEmENT Of CaSh flOwS  (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
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The notes to the financial statements com-
municate information essential for fair 

presentation of  the basic financial statements 
that is not displayed on the face of  the financial 
statements . As such, the notes form an integral 
part of  the basic financial statements as they 
present more detailed information about the 
University’s investments, bonds outstanding, 
capital assets, etc .

NOTES TO  
fiNaNCial  
STaTEmENTS

<< ustar Bioinnovations 650 Building: The 
110,000-square-foot interdisciplinary research 
building on the USU Innovation Campus is de-
signed to foster collaborative relationships 
among all USU life sciences researchers, indus-
try, and other higher education institutions. The 
building will house the most advanced life sci-
ences laboratory in the state and will provide re-
searchers the resources to seek cures for a range 
of human and animal diseases. USTAR teams 
such as the Center for Advanced Nutrition, 
Veterinary Diagnostics and Infectious Disease, 
and the Synthetic Bio-Manufacturing Center will 
be the initial occupants.



The significant accounting policies followed  by  Utah 
State University are described below . 
      
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
The University is a component unit of  the State of  Utah .  The fi-
nancial statements include the accounts of  Utah State University 
Agricultural Experiment Station, Utah State University Water 
Research Laboratory, Utah State University Cooperative 
Extension Service, Utah State University Uintah Basin Regional 
Campus, Utah State University Southeast Region, Utah State 
University Tooele Regional Campus, and Utah State University 
Brigham City Regional Campus, which are entities separately 
funded by state appropriations . 

The Utah State University Research Foundation (USURF) and 
the Utah State University Development Foundation, component 
units of  the University, have also been consolidated in these fi-
nancial statements .  USURF is governed by a Board of  Trustees 
appointed by the President of  Utah State University, under the 
direction of  the University Board of  Trustees .  USURF is a de-
pendent foundation of  Utah State University and is reported as 
a part of  the University because its primary purpose is to support 
the mission of  Utah State University in regards to research . The 
Utah State University Development Foundation is also governed 
by a Board of  Trustees . The Utah State University Development 
Foundation is a dependant foundation of  Utah State University 
and serves as the main fund-raising arm of the University . 
   
USURF annually publishes audited financial statements . A 
copy of  the audited financial statements can be obtained 
from USURF at 1695 North Research Parkway, North 
Logan, Utah 84341 .
      
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered 
a special purpose government engaged only in business-type 
activities .  Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have 
been presented using the economic resources measurement fo-
cus and the accrual basis of  accounting . Under the accrual basis, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded 
when an obligation has been incurred .  All significant intra-agen-
cy transactions have been eliminated . When both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available, such resources are spent and 
tracked at the discretion of  the department within the guidelines 
of  donor restrictions .

The University has the option to apply all Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 
30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with Government Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) . The University has elected to not ap-
ply FASB pronouncements issued after the applicable date . 
      
CASh AND CASh EQUIvALENTS   
Cash and cash equivalents consist of  cash and deposits with an 
original maturity of  three months or less .  (See Note B)  
      
INvESTMENTS   
The University accounts for its investments at fair value 
in accordance with GASB Statement No . 31, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools .  Changes in unrealized gain/(loss) on the 
carrying value of  investments are reported as a compo-
nent of  investment income in the Statement of  Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets .    
 
INvENTORIES     
The value of  the University Bookstore inventory is recorded 
at average cost determined using the retail inventory method 
while all other inventory values are essentially lower of  cost 
(first-in, first-out) or market .  Obsolete or unusable items are 
reduced to net realizable values .    
 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Assets that are externally restricted to make debt service pay-
ments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or that represent assets 
of  the University’s endowments are classified as non-current 
restricted assets .

Other non-current assets include those receivables that will 
not be realized within the next year, investments and real 
estate held for resale, and the University’s property, plant, 
and equipment net of  depreciation .

PROPERTY, PLANT,  AND EQUIPMENT  
The University componentizes certain research facilities to 
accommodate the different useful lives of  components for 
depreciation purposes .     
  
All buildings are carried on an estimated historical cost 
basis, at cost at date of  acquisition, or at fair value at date 
of  donation in the case of  gifts . All other physical plant and 
equipment are stated at cost when purchased or construct-
ed, or fair value at date of  donation in the case of  gifts .

The University capitalizes all equipment with a unit cost of  
$5,000 or more and an estimated useful life greater than one 
year . Buildings costing $50,000 or more are capitalized, as 
are improvements to buildings costing $50,000 or more 
that extend the useful life of  the building .  Improvements 
other than buildings costing $50,000 or more are also capi-
talized . All library books inventoried in the University’s 
recognized libraries are capitalized regardless of  cost .  

A. Summary Of SigNifiCaNT         
aCCOuNTiNg pOliCiES
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Interest is capitalized when incurred in connection with the 
financing of  construction projects . For the year ended June 
30, 2010, the University capitalized $895,818 of  interest in 
connection with construction projects .   
    
The University computes depreciation using the straight-
line composite method over the estimated useful life of  the 
assets . The estimated useful lives are as follows:

The University provides repair and replacement reserves 
for certain properties as required by the related bond in-
dentures . Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operating expense in the period in which the expense was 
incurred . 

DEFERRED REvENUES    
Deferred revenues consist primarily of  amounts received from 
contract and grant sponsors that have not yet been earned, 
amounts received for tuition and fees, and certain auxiliary 
activities prior to the end of  the fiscal year but related to the 
subsequent accounting period .  (See Note h)  
     
COMPENSATED ABSENCES    
Sick leave is not accrued but is reported in the period of  actual 
expenditure . Sick leave does not vest to the employee but is al-
lowed on an earned-time basis . At the end of  each calendar year, 
employees who have earned 48 days of  sick leave may convert 
up to four days of  sick leave to annual leave subject to other 
restrictions of  the University .

Annual leave, including converted sick leave, is accrued and 
reported as earned . Employees are allowed to carry a maxi-
mum of  34 days annual leave . The 34 days is variable depending 
on the number of  sick leave days the employee is allowed to 
convert at calendar year end .
   
GIFTS
The University received $689,788 of  gifts-in-kind, which 
were recorded as revenue and expense, during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2010 .     
 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  
Non-current liabilities include principal amounts of  rev-
enue bonds payable, notes payable, and contracts payable 
that are due beyond the next fiscal year, estimated amounts 
for accrued compensated absences, early retirement, and 
long-term deposits .     

NET ASSETS      
The University’s net assets are classified as follows:  
   
Invested in capital assets, net of  related debt: This 
represents the University’s total investment in capital as-
sets, net of  outstanding debt obligations related to those 
capital assets . To the extent debt has been incurred, but 
not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not 
included as a component of, “Invested in capital assets, net 
of  related debt .”      
 
Restricted net assets – non-expendable: Non-expendable 
restricted net assets consist of  endowment and similar-
type funds in which donors or other outside sources have 
stipulated, as a condition of  the gift instrument, that the 
principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, 
and invested for the purpose of  producing present and 
future income, which may either be expended or added to 
principal . Also included in this category are funds received 
from donors with the restriction that the funds will be used 
to provide short and long-term loans to students with all 
collections, both principal and interest, also being restricted 
for this purpose . 
    
Restricted net assets – expendable: Restricted expend-
able net assets include resources in which the University 
is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance 
with restrictions imposed by external third parties .  
      
Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets represent 
resources derived from student tuition and fees, state ap-
propriations, and sales and services of  educational depart-
ments . These resources are used for transactions relating 
to the educational and general operations of  the University 
and may be used at the discretion of  the governing board 
to meet current expenses for any purpose .  These resources 
also include Auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially 
self-supporting activities that provide services primarily for 
students . 

INCOME TAxES    
The University is excluded from income taxes under Section 
115(1) of  the Internal Revenue Code . The University is also 
considered a Section 501(c)(3) corporation .  
 

CLASSIFICATION OF REvENUES 
AND ExPENSES 
Operating revenues: Operating revenues include activi-
ties that have the characteristics of  exchange transactions 
such as: (1) student tuition and fees, net of  scholarship al-
lowances, (2) sales and services of  Auxiliary enterprises and 

Buildings 10-‐40	  years

Improvements	  other	  than	  buildings 5-‐20	  years

Equipment 3-‐15	  years

Library	  collections 20	  years

Cash $5,295,806
Money market fundsMoney market funds 30,242,169
Repurchase agreementsRepurchase agreements 3,483,526
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment FundUtah Public Treasurer's Investment FundUtah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 4,481,636

          Total $43,503,137
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other departments, (3) most federal, state, and local contracts 
and grants and federal appropriations, and (4) interest on 
institutional student loans .    
   
Non-operating revenues: Non-operating revenues include 
activities that have the characteristics of  non-exchange trans-
actions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue 
sources that are defined as non-operating revenues based 
on GASB Statement No . 9, Reporting Cash Flows of  Proprietary 
and Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That 
Use Proprietary Fund Accounting and GASB Statement No . 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
for State and Local Governments .  Examples of  non-operating 
revenues would include state appropriations and investment 
income .

Operating/non-operating expenses: With the exception of  
interest expense and losses on the disposal of  capital assets, all 
expense transactions are classified as operating expenses .
      
SChOLARShIP ALLOWANCES  
Student tuition and fee revenues are reported net of  schol-
arship allowances in the Statement of  Revenue, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets . Scholarship allowances are 
the difference between the stated charge for goods and 
services provided by the University, and the amount that 
is paid by students and/or third parties making payments 
on the students’ behalf . To the extent that revenues from 
other sources are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other 
student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship 
allowance to eliminate overstating total revenues to the 
University and properly record the revenues at the original 
source .         
  
SEGMENT REPORTING
The University, through the Utah State Board of  Regents, 
issues revenue bonds to finance certain activities . The 
University has deemed it not necessary to report seg-
ments on these bond issues, based upon the criteria pro-
vided in GASB Statement No . 34, Basic Financial Statements 
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments and GASB Statement No . 38, Certain Financial 
Statement Note Disclosures.  

RECLASSIFICATION    
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year 
comparative information to conform with the current 
year presentation . The reclassification had no effect on 
the change in net assets reported for the year ended June 
30, 2009 .  however, a reclassification of  $43,454,124 from 
Restricted-expendable to Unrestricted reflects a correction 
to 2009 net asset categories .    
    

PRIOR YEAR’S PRESENTATION   
Summary totals and other specific dollar amounts for the 
prior fiscal year (2009) are presented for comparison pur-
poses only .

 B. CaSh  aNd CaSh 
EQuivalENTS, aNd ShOrT-
TErm iNvESTmENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of  cash and investments 
with an original maturity of  three months or less . Short-
term investments consist of  investments with an original 
maturity greater than three months that will mature within 
one year or less . Cash, depending on source of  receipts, is 
pooled except when legal requirements dictate the use of  
separate accounts . The cash balances and cash float from 
outstanding checks are invested principally in short-term 
investments that conform to the provisions of  the Utah 
Code . It is the practice of  the University that the invest-
ments ordinarily be held to maturity at which time the par 
value of  the investments will be realized .   
  
The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Utah Public 
Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF) which is invested in ac-
cordance with the State Money Management Act . The State 
Money Management Council provides regulatory oversight 
for the PTIF . The PTIF is available for investment of  funds 
administered by any Utah Public Treasurer .  
   

At June 30, 2010, cash and cash equivalents, and short-
term investments consisted of: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

CASH	  AND	  CASH	  EQUIVALENTSCASH	  AND	  CASH	  EQUIVALENTS

CashCash $13,859,253

Money	  market	  accountsMoney	  market	  accounts 8,200,000

Money	  market	  fundsMoney	  market	  funds 8,495,019

Repurchase	  agreementsRepurchase	  agreements 4,992,504

Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  
Investment	  Fund

Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  
Investment	  Fund 2,430,708

Total	  	  	  	  	   $37,977,484
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Funds available for investment are pooled to maximize 
return and minimize administrative cost, except for funds 
that are authorized by the University administration to 
be separately invested or which are separately invested to 
meet legal or donor requirements . Investments received as 
gifts are recorded at market or appraised value on the date 
of  receipt . If  no market or appraised value is available, in-
vestments received as gifts are recorded at a nominal value . 
Other investments are also recorded at fair value .  
   
University personnel manage certain portfolios, while 
other portfolios are managed by banks, investment advi-
sors, or through trust agreements .   
 
According to the University’s Investment Policy, the gov-
erning board may appropriate for expenditure as much of  
the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, of  an endow-
ment’s corpus as is prudent under the facts and circum-
stances prevailing at the time of  the action or decision . 
The appropriation must be for the purposes for which 
the endowment is established and also includes a manage-
ment fee .
    
The endowment income spending policy at June 30, 2010, 
is 4 percent of  the 12 quarter moving average of  the mar-
ket value of  the endowment pool . The spending policy 
is reviewed periodically and any necessary changes are 
made .  

The amount of  net appreciation on investments of  
donor-restricted endowments that was available for 
authorization for expenditure at June 30, 2010, was 
$1,171,524 . The net appreciation is a component of  
restricted expendable net assets .
   
At June 30, 2010, the investment portfolio composition 
was as follows:
 

 

The Utah State Money Management Act defines the types 
of  securities authorized as appropriate investments for the 
University’s non-endowment funds and the conditions for 
making investment transactions .  Investment transactions 
may be conducted only through qualified depositories, cer-
tified dealers, or directly with issuers of  the investment 
securities .

Statutes authorize the University to invest in negotiable 
or non-negotiable deposits of  qualified depositories and 
permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse 
repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified 
as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations, one of  which must be Moody’s Investors 
Service or Standard & Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances; obli-
gations of  the United States Treasury including bills, notes, 
and bonds; bonds, notes, and other evidence of  indebt-
edness of  political subdivisions of  the State; fixed rate 
corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” 
or higher, or the equivalent of  “A” or higher, by two na-
tionally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares 
of  certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in 
the Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurer’s Investment 
Fund (PTIF) .

The PTIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) as an investment company . The PTIF 
is authorized and regulated by the Utah State Money 
Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, 
as amended . The Utah State Money Management Act es-
tablished the State Money Management Council, which 
oversees the activities of  the State Treasurer and the PTIF 
and details the types of  authorized investments . Deposits 
in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by 
the State of  Utah, and participants share proportion-
ally in any realized gains or losses on investments . 
The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an 

D. Deposits anD
investments 

SHORT-‐TERM	  INVESTMENTSSHORT-‐TERM	  INVESTMENTS

Commercial	  paper	  and	  
corporate	  notes

Commercial	  paper	  and	  
corporate	  notes $21,185,650

Common	  and	  preferred	  stocksCommon	  and	  preferred	  stocks 54,149

Obligations	  of	  the	  United	  States	  
Government

Obligations	  of	  the	  United	  States	  
Government 467,602

Time	  certificates	  of	  depositTime	  certificates	  of	  deposit 23,000,000

Total	   $44,707,401

AlternativesAlternatives $2,524,156
Commercial	  paper	  and	  
corporate	  notes

Commercial	  paper	  and	  
corporate	  notes 115,241

Common	  and	  preferred	  stocksCommon	  and	  preferred	  stocks 3,710,153

Municipal	  bondsMunicipal	  bonds 1,755,758

Mutual	  fundsMutual	  funds 48,123,413

Obligations	  of	  the	  United	  States
	  	  	  Government
Obligations	  of	  the	  United	  States
	  	  	  Government 79,634,277

Time	  certificates	  of	  depositTime	  certificates	  of	  deposit 85,000,000

Total	  investments	  (fair	  value) $220,862,998

C. iNvESTmENTS
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amortized cost basis . The income, gains and losses - net of  
administration fees, of  the PTIF are allocated based upon 
the participant’s average daily balance . The fair value of  the 
PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value 
of  the pool shares .

State law allows endowment funds of  higher education in-
stitutions to be invested in accordance with the Utah State 
Board of  Regents (Board of  Regents) default investment 
guidelines or in accordance with policies adopted by the 
institution’s Board of  Trustees and approved by the Board 
of  Regents . The University invests endowment funds in 
accordance with policies adopted by the Board of  Trustees 
and approved by the Board of  Regents . 

The University’s Investment Policy allows the University 
to invest endowment funds in investments authorized by 
the Utah State Money Management Act or any of  the fol-
lowing investments:  readily marketable equities, which are 
diversified across a spectrum of  market capitalizations, 
multiple regions, by issue, industry, and sector; readily mar-
ketable fixed income investments diversified by country, is-
sue, sector, coupon, and quality; bonds having a minimum 

quality of  “A” or better; non-investment grade securities, 
limited to 15 percent of  a manager’s portfolio; foreign se-
curities, limited to 15 percent of  a manager’s portfolio and 
alternative investments that derive returns primarily from 
high-yield and distressed debt, natural resources, private 
capital, commodities, private real-estate assets, or absolute 
return and long/short hedge funds . In addition, endow-
ment funds may be invested as specifically directed by do-
nor agreement .

DEPOSITS   
At June 30, 2010, the carrying amounts of  the University’s 
deposits and bank balances were $129,983,146 and 
$129,858,484, respectively . The bank balances of  the 
University were insured for $1,824,583 by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation . The bank balances in 
excess of  $1,824,583 were uninsured and uncollateral-
ized, leaving  $128,033,901 exposed to custodial credit 
risk . All deposits were held by a qualified depository as 
defined by the Utah State Money Management Act . The 
State of  Utah does not require collateral on deposits .  
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the 
event of  a bank failure, the University’s deposits may 

Figure	  1.aFigure	  1.a At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:At	  June	  20,	  2010	  the	  University	  had	  the	  following	  investments	  and	  maturities:

Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)Investment	  Maturities	  (in	  years)

Investment	  TypeInvestment	  Type Fair	  Value Less	  than	  1 1	  -‐	  5 6	  -‐	  10 Greater	  than	  10

Money	  market	  fundsMoney	  market	  funds $8,495,019 $8,495,019 -‐ -‐ -‐

Repurchase	  agreementsRepurchase	  agreements 4,992,504 4,992,504 -‐ -‐ -‐

Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  
Investment	  Fund

Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  
Investment	  Fund 2,430,708 2,430,708 -‐ -‐ -‐

Commercial	  paper	  and
corporate	  notes	  	  

Commercial	  paper	  and
corporate	  notes	  	   21,300,891 21,185,650 $105,891 -‐ $9,350

Government	  National
Mortgage	  Association	  

Government	  National
Mortgage	  Association	   7,020 -‐ -‐ -‐ 7,020

Municipal	  bondsMunicipal	  bonds 1,755,758 -‐ -‐ -‐ 1,755,758

Mutual	  funds	  -‐	  bondsMutual	  funds	  -‐	  bonds 3,923,903 -‐ 3,890,873 $33,030 -‐

U.S.	  agenciesU.S.	  agencies 79,692,069 210,250 9,167,419 60,098,800 10,215,600

U.S.	  treasury	  securitiesU.S.	  treasury	  securities 402,790 257,352 -‐ -‐ 145,438

Totals 123,000,662 $37,571,483 $13,164,183 $60,131,830 $12,133,166

Common	  and	  preferred	  stockCommon	  and	  preferred	  stock 3,764,302

Mutual	  funds	  -‐	  equitiesMutual	  funds	  -‐	  equities 44,199,510

AlternativesAlternatives 2,524,156

Total $173,488,630
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not be returned to the University . The University does 
not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk . 

INvESTMENTS
At June 30, 2010, the University had the following invest-
ments and maturities: (Figure 1.a)

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that chang-
es in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of  
an investment . The University’s policy for managing its 
exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest 
rates is to comply with the Utah State Money Management 
Act or the University’s Investment Policy, as applicable . 
For non-endowment funds, Section 51-7-11 of  the Utah 
State Money Management Act requires that the remaining 
term to maturity of  investments may not exceed the pe-
riod of  availability of  the funds to be invested . The Utah 
State Money Management Act further limits the remaining 

term to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, 
bankers’ acceptances, fixed-rate negotiable deposits, and 
fixed-rate corporate obligations to 270-365 days or fewer . 
In addition, variable-rate negotiable deposits and variable-
rate securities may not have a remaining term to final 
maturity exceeding two years . For endowment funds, the 
University’s Investment Policy requires only that invest-
ments be made as a prudent investor would, by considering 
the purposes, terms, distribution requirements, and other 
circumstances of  the endowments and by exercising rea-
sonable care, skill, and caution .

Credit Risk:  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation .  
The University’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit 
risk is to comply with the Utah State Money Management 
Act and the University’s Investment Policy, as previ-
ously discussed . 

At June 30, 2010, the University had the following invest-
ments with quality ratings: (Figure 1.b) 

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for invest-
ments is the risk that, in the event of  a failure of  the coun-
terparty, the University will not be able to recover the value 
of  the investments that are in the possession of  an out-
side party . The University does not have a formal invest-
ment policy for custodial credit risk . At June 30, 2010, the 
University had $4,992,504 in repurchase agreements where 
the underlying securities were uninsured and held by the 

investment’s counterparty, but not in the University’s name . 
At June 30, 2010, the University had $3,764,302 in com-
mon and preferred stock and $402,790 in United States 
treasuries which were held by the investment’s counterparty 
and $79,692,069 in United States agencies, and $21,300,891 
in commercial paper and corporate notes, which were 
held by the counterparty’s trust department but not in the 
University’s name .

Figure	  1.bFigure	  1.b

Quality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  RatingQuality	  Rating

Investment	  TypeInvestment	  Type Fair	  Value AAA A BBB Unrated No	  Risk

Money	  market	  fundsMoney	  market	  funds $8,495,019 $8,346,527 -‐ -‐ $148,492 -‐

Repurchase	  agreementsRepurchase	  agreements 4,992,504 -‐ -‐ -‐ 4,992,504 -‐
Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  

Investment	  Fund
Utah	  Public	  Treasurer’s	  

Investment	  Fund 2,430,708 -‐ -‐ -‐ 2,430,708 -‐
Commercial	  paper	  and

corporate	  notes
Commercial	  paper	  and

corporate	  notes 21,300,891 -‐ $5,278,941 $9,350 16,012,600 -‐
Government	  National

Mortgage	  Association
Government	  National

Mortgage	  Association 7,020 -‐ -‐ -‐ -‐ $7,020

Municipal	  bondsMunicipal	  bonds 1,755,758 -‐ 1,755,758 -‐ -‐ -‐

Mutual	  funds	  -‐	  bondsMutual	  funds	  -‐	  bonds 3,923,903 -‐ -‐ -‐ 3,923,903 -‐

U.S.	  agenciesU.S.	  agencies 79,692,069 79,692,069 -‐ -‐ -‐ -‐

U.S.	  treasury	  securitiesU.S.	  treasury	  securities 402,790 -‐ -‐ -‐ -‐ 402,790

Totals $123,000,662 $88,038,596 $7,034,699 $9,350 $27,508,207 $409,810
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Concentration of  Credit Risk: Concentration of  credit 
risk is the risk of  loss attributed to the magnitude of  a 
government’s investment in a single issuer . For endowment 
funds, the University policy requires diversification of  in-
vestments across a broad spectrum and specific limits to 
concentration of  securities within categories of  equities, 
fixed income, and alternatives . Rule 17 of  the State Money 
Management Council limits non-endowment fund invest-
ments in a single issuer of  commercial paper and corporate 
obligations to 5 percent . The Money Management Council 
limitations do not apply to securities issued by the United 
States Government and its agencies .

At June 30, 2010, the University held more than 5 percent 
of  total investments in securities of  American Express, the 
Federal home Loan Bank, the Federal National Mortgage 
Association, and Freddie Mac . These investments rep-
resent 5 .9, 22 .7, 14 .5, and 5 .9 percent respectively of  the 
total investments .

Under the terms of  various limited partnership agree-
ments approved by the Board of  Trustees or by University 
officers, the University is obligated to make periodic  

 
payments for advance commitments to venture capital, nat-
ural resource, and private equity investments . As of  June 30, 
2010, the University had committed, but not paid, a total 
of  $6,951,588 in funding for these alternative investments .

E. accounts, creDits,  anD 
stuDent Loans receivabLe

Credits receivable, $335,179, reflect amounts due from 
vendors doing business primarily with the University’s 
Bookstore .

Student loans receivable are comprised primarily of  loans is-
sued through the Federal Perkins Loan Program (FPLP) and 
short-term loans issued from funds set aside by the University 
for that purpose . 
     
The FPLP loans provide for cancelation of  a loan at rates 
of  10 percent to 30 percent per year up to a maximum of  
100 percent if  the participant complies with certain provi-
sions . The FPLP loans are payable after completion of  
academic degrees or termination as a student, with a term 

Figure	  2.aFigure	  2.aFigure	  2.a Current	  	   Non-‐Current	  	   Total	  	  

Due	  from	  primary	  government:Due	  from	  primary	  government:Due	  from	  primary	  government:Due	  from	  primary	  government: 	  

State	  contracts	  and	  grantsState	  contracts	  and	  grantsState	  contracts	  and	  grants $1,442,407	   -‐	   $1,442,407	  

State	  appropriationsState	  appropriationsState	  appropriations 984,299	   -‐	   984,299	  

State	  grant	  -‐	  USTARState	  grant	  -‐	  USTARState	  grant	  -‐	  USTAR 1,897,905	   -‐	   1,897,905	  

Land	  grant	  revenueLand	  grant	  revenueLand	  grant	  revenue 83,446	   -‐	   83,446	  

Due	  from	  State	  TreasurerDue	  from	  State	  TreasurerDue	  from	  State	  Treasurer 920,483	   -‐	   920,483	  

Due	  from	  others:Due	  from	  others:Due	  from	  others:Due	  from	  others:

Contracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grantsContracts	  and	  grants 31,363,718	   -‐	   31,363,718	  

Pledges	  receivablePledges	  receivablePledges	  receivable 4,392,374	   $36,633,436	   41,025,810	  

Auxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprisesAuxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprises 1,480,249	   -‐	   1,480,249	  

Other	  activitiesOther	  activitiesOther	  activities 12,738,887	   1,577,635	   14,316,522	  

Total	  accounts	  receivableTotal	  accounts	  receivable 55,303,768	   38,211,071	   93,514,839	  

Less	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accounts (1,063,861) -‐	   (1,063,861)

Net	  accounts	  receivable $54,239,907	   $38,211,071 $92,450,978	  

Accounts receivable consist of  the following 
at June 30, 2010:  (Figure 2.a)
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Figure	  2.bFigure	  2.bFigure	  2.b Current Non-‐Current Total

Federal	  Perkins	  Loan	  ProgramFederal	  Perkins	  Loan	  ProgramFederal	  Perkins	  Loan	  ProgramFederal	  Perkins	  Loan	  Program $472,111	   $10,531,293	   $11,003,404	  

OtherOther 1,347,066	   -‐	   1,347,066	  

Total	  notes	  receivableTotal	  notes	  receivableTotal	  notes	  receivable 1,819,177	   10,531,293	   12,350,470	  

Less	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accountsLess	  allowance	  for	  doubtful	  accounts (33,379) (203,040) (236,419)

Net	  notes	  receivableNet	  notes	  receivableNet	  notes	  receivable $1,785,798	   $10,328,253	   $12,114,051	  

of  ten years and an interest rate of  5 percent . In the event the 
University should withdraw from the FPLP or the govern-
ment were to cancel the program, the amount the University 
would be liable to the federal government for, as of  June 30, 
2010, is $10,274,205 .
 
As the University determines that loans are uncollectible and 
not eligible for reimbursement by the federal government, 

the loans are written off  and assigned to the U .S . Department 
of  Education .
 
Other University short-term loans have a term of  two to four 
months and carry an interest rate of  7 percent to 12 percent . The 
12 percent rate applies if  the loan becomes delinquent . Notes 
receivable are as follows: (Figure 2 .b)

USU received a record $187 million in research awards during 
the 2010 fiscal year. At the Logan Lagoons, USU researchers are 
trying to determine if high-oil-producing algae can be used to 
produce biofuels. 
Pictured: Logan Christenson, Gunnison, UT, Biological 
Engineering, MS



F. property,  pLant,  
anD equipment

Figure	  3Figure	  3Figure	  3 Balance
June	  30,	  2009 Additions Transfers Disposals

Balance
June	  30,	  2010

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

Property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment	  
not	  depreciated

LandLand $17,092,416	   $6,935,131	   -‐	  	   -‐	  	   $24,027,547	  

Construction	  in	  progressConstruction	  in	  progressConstruction	  in	  progressConstruction	  in	  progressConstruction	  in	  progress

BuildingsBuildingsBuildings 10,287,201	   39,188,478	   ($9,003,607) -‐	  	   40,472,072	  

Improvements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildings 825,932	   1,619,746	   (1,392,684) -‐	  	   1,052,994	  

EquipmentEquipmentEquipmentEquipment 2,938,487	   586,160	   (2,253,495) -‐	  	   1,271,152	  

Art	  and	  special	  collectionsArt	  and	  special	  collectionsArt	  and	  special	  collectionsArt	  and	  special	  collectionsArt	  and	  special	  collections 6,831,750	   2,982,981	   -‐	  	   -‐	  	   9,814,731	  

Total	  property,	  plant,	  and
equipment	  not	  depreciated

Total	  property,	  plant,	  and
equipment	  not	  depreciated

Total	  property,	  plant,	  and
equipment	  not	  depreciated $37,975,786	   $51,312,496	   ($12,649,786) $0	   $76,638,496	  

Other	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipmentOther	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipmentOther	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipmentOther	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipmentOther	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipmentOther	  property,	  plant,	  and	  equipment

BuildingsBuildingsBuildings $541,513,870	   $7,614,936	   $8,653,607	   -‐	  	   $557,782,413	  

Improvements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildings 69,423,474	   -‐	   1,392,684	   -‐	  	   70,816,158	  

EquipmentEquipmentEquipmentEquipment 118,133,289	   8,056,613	   2,603,495	   ($4,820,588) 123,972,809	  

Library	  collectionsLibrary	  collectionsLibrary	  collectionsLibrary	  collectionsLibrary	  collections 69,802,356	   1,286,166	   -‐	  	   -‐	  	   71,088,522	  

Total	  other	  property,	  plant,	  
and	  equipment

Total	  other	  property,	  plant,	  
and	  equipment

Total	  other	  property,	  plant,	  
and	  equipment 798,872,989	   16,957,715	   12,649,786	   (4,820,588) 823,659,902	  

Less	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciation

BuildingsBuildingsBuildings (191,485,948) (16,314,423) 16,042	   -‐	  	   (207,784,329)

Improvements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildingsImprovements	  other	  than	  buildings (37,377,436) (2,561,035) -‐	  	   -‐	  	   (39,938,471)

EquipmentEquipmentEquipmentEquipment (76,960,383) (10,679,000) (16,042) 4,278,874	   (83,376,551)

Library	  collectionsLibrary	  collectionsLibrary	  collectionsLibrary	  collections (40,362,505) (2,696,864) -‐	  	   -‐	  	   (43,059,369)

Total	  accumulated	  depreciationTotal	  accumulated	  depreciationTotal	  accumulated	  depreciationTotal	  accumulated	  depreciation (346,186,272) (32,251,322) 0	   4,278,874	   (374,158,720)

Other	  capital	  assets	  netOther	  capital	  assets	  net $452,686,717	   ($15,293,607) $12,649,786	   ($541,714) $449,501,182	  

Capital	  assets	  –	  summaryCapital	  assets	  –	  summaryCapital	  assets	  –	  summaryCapital	  assets	  –	  summaryCapital	  assets	  –	  summaryCapital	  assets	  –	  summary

Capital	  assets	  not	  depreciatedCapital	  assets	  not	  depreciatedCapital	  assets	  not	  depreciatedCapital	  assets	  not	  depreciatedCapital	  assets	  not	  depreciated $37,975,786	   $51,312,496	   ($12,649,786) -‐	  	   $76,638,496	  

Other	  capital	  assets	  at	  costOther	  capital	  assets	  at	  costOther	  capital	  assets	  at	  costOther	  capital	  assets	  at	  costOther	  capital	  assets	  at	  cost 798,872,989	   16,957,715	   12,649,786	   ($4,820,588) 823,659,902	  

Total	  cost	  of	  capital	  assetsTotal	  cost	  of	  capital	  assetsTotal	  cost	  of	  capital	  assets 836,848,775	   68,270,211	   0	   (4,820,588) 900,298,398	  

Less	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciationLess	  accumulated	  depreciation (346,186,272) (32,251,322) 0	   4,278,874	   (374,158,720)

Capital	  assets	  –	  
net	  of	  depreciation

Capital	  assets	  –	  
net	  of	  depreciation $490,662,503	   $36,018,889	   $0	   ($541,714) $526,139,678	  

The University’s investment in property, plant,  
and equipment consists of  the following: 
(Figure 3)
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H. bonDs, notes, 
contracts,  anD other  
non-current  
LiabiLities

Assets pledged for payment of  bonds and contracts 
include the net revenue of  Auxiliary enterprises, 
land-grant funds, specific student fees, and reim-
bursed facilities and administrative costs . The gross 
amount of  capital assets purchased under capital 
lease as of  June 30, 2010 was $33,880,458 .  Bonds, 
notes, and contracts outstanding at June 30, 2010 and 
2009 were as follows: (Figure 4.a and 4.b)

Salaries	  and	  benefits	  payable	  
($1,898,980	  due	  to	  
primary	  government)

Salaries	  and	  benefits	  payable	  
($1,898,980	  due	  to	  
primary	  government) $26,205,497

Due	  to	  primary	  governmentDue	  to	  primary	  government 6,061,464

Suppliers	  payableSuppliers	  payable 13,960,520

Interest	  payableInterest	  payable 786,393

OtherOther 86,323

Total	  accounts	  payable	  and	  
accrued	  liabilities $47,100,197

Figure	  4.aFigure	  4.aFigure	  4.aFigure	  4.a June	  30,	  2010 June	  30,	  2009

Bonds	  payableBonds	  payableBonds	  payableBonds	  payableBonds	  payable

Stadium/Spectrum	  and	  Student	  Recreation	  BondsStadium/Spectrum	  and	  Student	  Recreation	  BondsStadium/Spectrum	  and	  Student	  Recreation	  BondsStadium/Spectrum	  and	  Student	  Recreation	  BondsStadium/Spectrum	  and	  Student	  Recreation	  Bonds

Series	  A	  (2004)	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2004-‐2026,	  $11,065,000Series	  A	  (2004)	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2004-‐2026,	  $11,065,000Series	  A	  (2004)	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2004-‐2026,	  $11,065,000Series	  A	  (2004)	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2004-‐2026,	  $11,065,000 $9,230,000 $9,585,000

Student	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsStudent	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsStudent	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsStudent	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsStudent	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  Bonds

Series	  A	  (1999)	  3.80%-‐4.75%,	  2002-‐2014,	  $15,010,000Series	  A	  (1999)	  3.80%-‐4.75%,	  2002-‐2014,	  $15,010,000Series	  A	  (1999)	  3.80%-‐4.75%,	  2002-‐2014,	  $15,010,000Series	  A	  (1999)	  3.80%-‐4.75%,	  2002-‐2014,	  $15,010,000 -‐ 9,575,000

Series	  2007	  4.00%-‐5.00%,	  2005-‐2035,	  $39,155,000Series	  2007	  4.00%-‐5.00%,	  2005-‐2035,	  $39,155,000Series	  2007	  4.00%-‐5.00%,	  2005-‐2035,	  $39,155,000Series	  2007	  4.00%-‐5.00%,	  2005-‐2035,	  $39,155,000 39,155,000 39,155,000

Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐4.00%,	  2010-‐2015,	  $8,130,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐4.00%,	  2010-‐2015,	  $8,130,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐4.00%,	  2010-‐2015,	  $8,130,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐4.00%,	  2010-‐2015,	  $8,130,000 8,020,000 -‐

Total	  Student	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsTotal	  Student	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  BondsTotal	  Student	  Housing	  System	  Revenue	  Bonds 47,175,000 48,730,000

Research	  Revenue	  BondsResearch	  Revenue	  BondsResearch	  Revenue	  BondsResearch	  Revenue	  BondsResearch	  Revenue	  Bonds

Series	  A	  (2002)	  2.50%-‐5.25%,	  2002-‐2018,	  $23,735,000Series	  A	  (2002)	  2.50%-‐5.25%,	  2002-‐2018,	  $23,735,000Series	  A	  (2002)	  2.50%-‐5.25%,	  2002-‐2018,	  $23,735,000Series	  A	  (2002)	  2.50%-‐5.25%,	  2002-‐2018,	  $23,735,000 15,960,000 17,580,000

Series	  2003	  1.90%-‐4.40%,	  2003-‐2016,	  $705,000Series	  2003	  1.90%-‐4.40%,	  2003-‐2016,	  $705,000Series	  2003	  1.90%-‐4.40%,	  2003-‐2016,	  $705,000Series	  2003	  1.90%-‐4.40%,	  2003-‐2016,	  $705,000 367,000 420,000

Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2009-‐2031,	  $22,000,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2009-‐2031,	  $22,000,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2009-‐2031,	  $22,000,000Series	  2009	  2.00%-‐5.00%,	  2009-‐2031,	  $22,000,000 21,865,000 22,000,000

Total	  Research	  Revenue	  BondsTotal	  Research	  Revenue	  BondsTotal	  Research	  Revenue	  Bonds 38,192,000 40,000,000

Total	  bonds	  payableTotal	  bonds	  payable 94,597,000 98,315,000

continued on next page...

G. accounts payabLe anD 
accrueD LiabiLities

Accounts payable consisted of  the following at June 30, 2010: 
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(H. continued)

Figure	  4.bFigure	  4.bFigure	  4.b June	  30,	  2010 June	  30,	  2009

Notes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableNotes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableNotes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableNotes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableNotes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableNotes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payable

Zions	  Mortgage,	  3%,	  1978-‐2011Zions	  Mortgage,	  3%,	  1978-‐2011Zions	  Mortgage,	  3%,	  1978-‐2011Zions	  Mortgage,	  3%,	  1978-‐2011Zions	  Mortgage,	  3%,	  1978-‐2011 $22,500	   $112,500	  

Logan	  Park,	  LLC,	  7.75%,	  1999-‐2011Logan	  Park,	  LLC,	  7.75%,	  1999-‐2011Logan	  Park,	  LLC,	  7.75%,	  1999-‐2011Logan	  Park,	  LLC,	  7.75%,	  1999-‐2011Logan	  Park,	  LLC,	  7.75%,	  1999-‐2011 94,735	   212,807	  

Zions	  Bank,	  4.70%,	  2003-‐2013Zions	  Bank,	  4.70%,	  2003-‐2013Zions	  Bank,	  4.70%,	  2003-‐2013Zions	  Bank,	  4.70%,	  2003-‐2013Zions	  Bank,	  4.70%,	  2003-‐2013 480,535	   640,467	  

Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  3.95%,	  2003-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  3.95%,	  2003-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  3.95%,	  2003-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  3.95%,	  2003-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  3.95%,	  2003-‐2025 11,408,600	   12,002,652	  

Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  4.65%,	  2005-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  4.65%,	  2005-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  4.65%,	  2005-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  4.65%,	  2005-‐2025Caterpillar	  Financial	  Services,	  4.65%,	  2005-‐2025 107,174	   112,444	  

Key	  Municipal	  Finance,	  4.59%,	  2006-‐2014Key	  Municipal	  Finance,	  4.59%,	  2006-‐2014Key	  Municipal	  Finance,	  4.59%,	  2006-‐2014Key	  Municipal	  Finance,	  4.59%,	  2006-‐2014Key	  Municipal	  Finance,	  4.59%,	  2006-‐2014 526,025	   638,857	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016 -‐	  	   313,703	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  3.58%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  3.58%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  3.58%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  3.58%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  3.58%,	  2007-‐2016 -‐	  	   320,500	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016Bank	  of	  America,	  4.017%,	  2007-‐2016 -‐	  	   1,463,351	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2017Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2017Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2017Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2017Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2017 -‐	  	   354,036	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.97%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.97%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.97%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.97%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.97%,	  2008-‐2018 501,763	   560,335	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.18%,	  2007-‐2022 1,643,679	   1,753,017	  

Bank	  of	  America,	  4.35%,	  2010-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.35%,	  2010-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.35%,	  2010-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.35%,	  2010-‐2022Bank	  of	  America,	  4.35%,	  2010-‐2022 2,216,565	   -‐	  	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.05%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.05%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.05%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.05%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.05%,	  2008-‐2018 514,461	   574,310	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.67%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.67%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.67%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.67%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.67%,	  2008-‐2018 3,572,206	   3,748,176	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.75%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.75%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.75%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.75%,	  2008-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  3.75%,	  2008-‐2018 142,042	   156,455	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.5%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.5%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.5%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.5%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.5%,	  2009-‐2018 104,562	   115,183	  

SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.6%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.6%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.6%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.6%,	  2009-‐2018SunTrust	  Leasing	  Corp.,	  4.6%,	  2009-‐2018 417,471	   463,111	  

Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.15%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.15%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.15%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.15%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.15%	  2009-‐2016 313,848	   372,704	  

Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  4.54%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  4.54%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  4.54%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  4.54%	  2009-‐2016Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  4.54%	  2009-‐2016 295,269	   361,688	  

Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.12%	  2010-‐2029Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.12%	  2010-‐2029Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.12%	  2010-‐2029Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.12%	  2010-‐2029Zions	  Credit	  Corp.,	  5.12%	  2010-‐2029 322,157	   -‐	  	  

Total	  notes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableTotal	  notes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableTotal	  notes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payableTotal	  notes	  and	  capital	  leases	  payable 22,683,592	   24,276,296	  

Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014Equipment	  contracts	  payable,	  2009-‐2014 1,208,849	   1,490,787	  

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payableTotal	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payableTotal	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payableTotal	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payable 118,489,441	   124,082,083	  

Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),Unamortized	  original	  issue	  discounts	  (OID),

	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds	  	  	  reoffering	  premiums	  (RP),	  and	  refunding	  losses	  on	  bonds

1995A	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss1995A	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss1995A	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss1995A	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss1995A	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss (19,339) (58,017)

2002A	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2002A	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2002A	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2002A	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2002A	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP 279,317	   323,603	  

2004A/B	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2004A/B	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2004A/B	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2004A/B	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2004A/B	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP 25,511	   27,131	  

2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  refunding	  loss (1,700,699) (1,769,415)

2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2007	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP 3,482,170	   3,622,864	  

2009	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  -‐	  RP 557,410	   585,355	  

2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  refunding	  loss2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  refunding	  loss (49,120) -‐	  	  

2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  RP2009	  Bonds	  (housing)	  -‐	  RP 364,732	   -‐	  	  

Total	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bondsTotal	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bondsTotal	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bondsTotal	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bonds 2,939,982	   2,731,521	  

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payable	  net	  
	  	  	  	  of	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bonds
Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payable	  net	  
	  	  	  	  of	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bonds
Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  and	  equipment	  contracts	  payable	  net	  
	  	  	  	  of	  unamortized	  OID,	  RP,	  and	  refunding	  loss	  on	  bonds $121,429,423	   $126,813,604	  38



Figure	  4.dFigure	  4.d

Bonds
Bond

Interest

Notes	  and
Capital
Leases

Notes	  and
Capital	  
Leases

Interest
Equipment
Contracts

Contracts
Interest

Total	  
Amount
Required

FY	  2011FY	  2011 $3,765,000 $4,278,195 $1,775,776 $914,943 $864,623 $42,442 $11,640,979

FY	  2012FY	  2012 4,552,000 4,119,990 1,740,349 841,311 287,242 5,650 11,546,542
FY	  2013FY	  2013 4,710,000 3,941,053 1,823,195 764,122 37,884 1,549 11,277,803
FY	  2014FY	  2014 4,892,000 3,775,576 1,636,049 689,601 19,100 218 11,012,544
FY	  2015FY	  2015 5,040,000 3,591,935 1,605,072 622,060 -‐ -‐ 10,859,067
FY's	  	  2016-‐2020FY's	  	  2016-‐2020 20,663,000 14,826,828 9,205,282 1,879,909 -‐ -‐ 46,575,019

FY's	  	  2021-‐2025FY's	  	  2021-‐2025 17,665,000 10,502,687 4,795,376 385,741 -‐ -‐ 33,348,804

FY's	  	  2026-‐2030FY's	  	  2026-‐2030 18,385,000 6,031,956 102,493 11,144 -‐ -‐ 24,530,593

FY's	  	  2031-‐2035FY's	  	  2031-‐2035 14,925,000 1,962,474 -‐ -‐ -‐ -‐ 16,887,474

Total	   $94,597,000 $53,030,694 $22,683,592 $6,108,831 $1,208,849 $49,859 $177,678,825

Figure	  4.c

Bonds
Notes	  and

Capital	  Leases
Equipment
Contracts

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  Total
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  Payable

Unamortized
OID,	  RP,	  and

Refunding	  Loss

Total	  Net	  of
OID,	  RP,	  and

Refunding	  Loss

Balance	  at
June	  30,	  2009 $98,315,000	   $24,276,296	   $1,490,787	   $124,082,083	  	   $2,731,521	   $126,813,604	  

Additions 8,130,000	   2,595,352	   403,728	   11,129,080	  	   368,015	   11,497,095	  
Deletions 	  	  (11,848,000) (4,188,056) (685,666) (16,721,722)	   (159,554) (16,881,276)

Balance	  at	  
June	  30,	  2010 $94,597,000	   $22,683,592	   $1,208,849	   $118,489,441	  	   $2,939,982	   $121,429,423	  

(H. continued)
Below is a summary of  the changes in bonds, notes, and 
equipment contracts payable for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2010: (Figure 4.c)

 
The University has complied with the restrictive covenants 
of  its bond agreements . Amounts due on bonds and con-
tracts payable in future years are as follows: (Figure 4.d)
  

 
The outstanding balance of  bonds defeased and refunded 
in prior years totaled $40,470,000 at June 30, 2010 . The 
bond liabilities of  the defeased and refunded bonds are not 
included on the balance sheet . 
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(H. continued)
Deferred revenues and deposits consisted of  the fol-
lowing at June 30, 2010: (Figure 4.e)

Summary of  changes in liabilities for the year 
ended June 30, 2010: (Figure 4.f )

Figure	  4.eFigure	  4.e Current Non-‐Current Total

Tuition	  and	  feesTuition	  and	  fees $8,303,635 -‐ $8,303,635

Contracts	  and	  grant	  revenueContracts	  and	  grant	  revenueContracts	  and	  grant	  revenue 8,405,556 $540,000 8,945,556

Auxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprises	  Auxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprises	  Auxiliary	  and	  service	  enterprises	   1,215,978 -‐ 1,215,978

Non-‐operatingNon-‐operating 73,259 -‐ 73,259

OtherOther 43,728 506,272 550,000

Total $18,042,156 $1,046,272 $19,088,428

I. plEdgEd bONd rEvENuE
The University issues revenue bonds to provide funds for 
the construction and renovation of  major capital facili-
ties .  Investors in these bonds rely solely on the net revenue 
pledged by the following activities for the retirement of  
outstanding bonds payable . 

 
is comprised of  the net revenue from specific Auxiliary 
enterprises and student building fee assessments . The 
Student Fee and housing System includes all University 
housing except the Student Living Center, Parking Services, 

all of  University Dining Services, the net revenues of  the 
Taggart Student Center, Student Building Fees specifically 
indentified in the bond resolution and land grant revenues . 
The University has pledged future net revenues of  the 
Student Fee and housing System to repay $39,155,000 
and $8,130,000 in bonds issued in May 2007 and October 
2009 respectively . Proceeds from the 2007 bonds were used 
to refund bonds issued in 2004 . Proceeds from the 2009 
bonds were used to refund bonds issued in 1999, which 
were issued to refund bonds issued in 1994 . This refund-
ing resulted in an increase of  $57,276 in the net carrying 
amount of  the refunded debt, a reduction in the future 
debt service payments of  $628,792, and an economic gain 

Figure	  4.fFigure	  4.fFigure	  4.fFigure	  4.f Beginning	  
Balance

June	  30,	  2009 Additions Reductions

Ending	  
Balance

June	  30,	  2010

Amounts
Due	  Within

One	  Year

Bonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payableBonds,	  notes,	  and	  contracts	  payable
Bonds	  payableBonds	  payableBonds	  payableBonds	  payable $101,046,521 	   $8,498,015	   ($12,007,554) $97,536,982 	   $3,765,000 	  
Notes	  payableNotes	  payableNotes	  payableNotes	  payable 24,276,296	   2,595,352	   (4,188,056) 22,683,592	   1,775,776	  

Contracts	  payableContracts	  payableContracts	  payableContracts	  payable 1,490,787	   403,728	   (685,666) 1,208,849	   864,623	  

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  
and	  contracts	  payable

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  
and	  contracts	  payable

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  
and	  contracts	  payable

Total	  bonds,	  notes,	  
and	  contracts	  payable 126,813,604	   11,497,095	   (16,881,276) 121,429,423	   6,405,399	  

Other	  liabilitiesOther	  liabilitiesOther	  liabilitiesOther	  liabilitiesOther	  liabilities

Liability	  for	  compensated	  absencesLiability	  for	  compensated	  absencesLiability	  for	  compensated	  absencesLiability	  for	  compensated	  absencesLiability	  for	  compensated	  absencesLiability	  for	  compensated	  absences 14,847,031	   12,338,857	   (11,386,947) 15,798,941	   10,698,154	  

Liability	  for	  early	  retirementLiability	  for	  early	  retirementLiability	  for	  early	  retirementLiability	  for	  early	  retirementLiability	  for	  early	  retirement 25,532,133	   2,538,209	   (10,183,572) 17,886,770	   5,443,002	  

Deferred	  revenue	  and	  depositsDeferred	  revenue	  and	  depositsDeferred	  revenue	  and	  depositsDeferred	  revenue	  and	  depositsDeferred	  revenue	  and	  deposits 16,591,422	   17,998,428	   (16,051,422) 18,538,428	   17,998,428	  

OtherOther -‐	   550,000	   -‐	   550,000	   43,728	  

	  

Total	  other	  liabilitiesTotal	  other	  liabilitiesTotal	  other	  liabilitiesTotal	  other	  liabilities 56,970,586	   33,425,494	   (37,621,941) 52,774,139	   34,183,312	  

Total	  non-‐current	  liabilitiesTotal	  non-‐current	  liabilitiesTotal	  non-‐current	  liabilitiesTotal	  non-‐current	  liabilities $183,784,190 	   $44,922,589  ($54,503,217) $174,203,562	   $40,588,711 	  
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(difference between the present value of  the old and new 
debt service payments) of  $603,442 . Proceeds from the 
1994 and 2004 bonds provided financing for the con-
struction and renovation of  the Student Fee and housing 
System facilities . Student Fee and housing System annual 
net revenues are projected to produce at least 110 percent 
of  the annual debt service requirements over the life of  
the bonds .  The total principal and interest remaining to be 
paid on the bonds is $80,779,851 . The bonds are payable 
solely from the Student Fee and housing System and are 
payable through 2035 .

 
 
is comprised of  those student fees specifically identi-
fied in the bond resolution and paid by students for the 
use and availability of  the facilities . The University has 
pledged future revenues of  the specifically identified stu-
dent fees to repay $11,065,000 in bonds issued in June 
2004 . Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for 
the renovating and remodeling of  the University’s foot-
ball stadium and a student recreation center . Student fee 
revenues are projected to produce at least 110 percent 
of  the annual debt service requirements over the life 
of  the bonds . The total principal and interest remaining 
to be paid on the bonds is $13,570,150 . The bonds are  
 

payable solely from the Student Fee Stadium/Spectrum 
Recreation Facilities System and are payable through 2026 . 

is comprised of  the revenue generated from the recovery 
of  allocated facilities and administration costs to contracts 
and grants based on federally approved negotiated rate 
agreements . The University has pledged future revenues 
of  the Research Revenue System to repay $23,735,000; 
$705,000; and $22,000,000 in bonds issued in July 2002, 
March 2003, and May 2009 respectively . Proceeds from 
the 2002 bonds provided financing for the cost of  acquir-
ing, constructing, furnishing and equipping three buildings 
as office and research facilities on the USU Innovation 
Campus . Proceeds from the 2003 bonds provided for the 
acquisition of  550 acres of  farmland approximately 12 
miles northwest of  Logan to replace University farmland 
now assigned to the USU Innovation Campus . Proceeds 
from the 2009 bonds provided financing for the cost of  
acquiring, constructing and equipping two research facili-
ties located at the University’s main campus and the vernal, 
Utah campus . Annual principal and interest payments on 
the bonds are expected to require less than 20 percent of  
revenues . The total principal and interest remaining to be 
paid on the bonds is $53,277,693 . The bonds are payable 
solely from the Research Revenue System and are payable 
through 2031 .

Figure	  5Figure	  5Figure	  5

Student	  Fee
and	  Housing	  System

Student	  Fee
Stadium/Spectrum

Recreation
Facilities	  System

Research	  
Revenue	  System

RevenueRevenueRevenue

Operating	  revenue/gross	  profitOperating	  revenue/gross	  profitOperating	  revenue/gross	  profitOperating	  revenue/gross	  profitOperating	  revenue/gross	  profit $20,690,765 $1,202,150 $24,302,121

Non-‐operating	  revenueNon-‐operating	  revenueNon-‐operating	  revenueNon-‐operating	  revenue 300,033 -‐ -‐

Total	  revenueTotal	  revenueTotal	  revenue 20,990,798 1,202,150 24,302,121

ExpensesExpensesExpenses

Operating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expensesOperating	  expenses 15,132,892 -‐ -‐

Total	  expensesTotal	  expensesTotal	  expenses 15,132,892 0 0

Net	  pledged	  revenueNet	  pledged	  revenueNet	  pledged	  revenue $5,857,906 $1,202,150 $24,302,121

Principal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expensePrincipal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expensePrincipal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expensePrincipal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expensePrincipal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expensePrincipal	  paid	  and	  interest	  expense $3,791,662 $821,884 $3,525,462

Debt	  service	  ratioDebt	  service	  ratioDebt	  service	  ratioDebt	  service	  ratioDebt	  service	  ratio 1.54X 1.46X 6.89X

 
The following schedule presents the net revenue pledged 
to the applicable bond system and the principal and inter-
est paid for the year ended June 30, 2010: (Figure 5)

RESEARCh REvENUE SYSTEM –
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Utah Retirement Systems plans include multiple-employer, 
cost sharing, defined benefit plans, and defined contribu-
tion plans consisting of  401(k)  and 457 plans . The defined 
benefit plans provide defined benefits based on years of  ser-
vice and highest average salaries . The defined contribution 
plans provide benefits based on total contributions and the 
accumulated earnings . The plans are administered by the 
State of  Utah . These systems cover substantially all eligible 
public employees of  the State of  Utah, educational em-
ployees, and employees of  participating local governmental 

entities . The pension benefit is vested at the end of  four 
years under all Utah Retirement Systems plans in which 
University employees are participating . The amount cred-
ited as the individual’s contribution is vested at the time the 
contribution is made .  For employees in the contributory 
plan, the University contributes at a rate of  15 .73 percent 
of  gross earnings . Of  this, 6 percent is credited as the 
individual’s contribution and 9 .73 percent is considered 
the University’s matching contribution .  For employees in 
the State and School System – Non-contributory plan, the 

ContributionsContributions

Year CompensationCompensation
Defined

Benefit	  Plans

Defined
Contribution
Plans	  401(k) Total

Utah	  Retirement	  SystemsUtah	  Retirement	  SystemsUtah	  Retirement	  SystemsUtah	  Retirement	  SystemsUtah	  Retirement	  Systems

State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	   2010 $666,276 $104,805 -‐	   $104,805

Contributory	  Contributory	  Contributory	   2009 786,170 123,664 -‐	   123,664

2008 807,547 127,327 -‐	   127,327

State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	  State	  and	  School	  System	  –	   2010 34,255,575 4,866,148 $579,699 5,445,847

Non-‐contributory	  (includesNon-‐contributory	  (includesNon-‐contributory	  (includesNon-‐contributory	  (includes 2009 36,431,694 5,180,298 603,655 5,783,953

amounts	  (see	  note	  below)amounts	  (see	  note	  below)amounts	  (see	  note	  below)amounts	  (see	  note	  below) 2008 35,780,342 5,090,311 577,738 5,668,049

contributed	  to	  a	  401(k)	  plan	  contributed	  to	  a	  401(k)	  plan	  contributed	  to	  a	  401(k)	  plan	  contributed	  to	  a	  401(k)	  plan	  

with	  Educators	  Mutual	  Insurancewith	  Educators	  Mutual	  Insurancewith	  Educators	  Mutual	  Insurancewith	  Educators	  Mutual	  Insurancewith	  Educators	  Mutual	  Insurance

Association	  (EMIA))Association	  (EMIA))Association	  (EMIA))

Public	  Safety	  with	  Social	  Security	  Public	  Safety	  with	  Social	  Security	  Public	  Safety	  with	  Social	  Security	  Public	  Safety	  with	  Social	  Security	  Public	  Safety	  with	  Social	  Security	   2010 336,134 101,445 -‐	   101,445

System	  –	  Non-‐contributory	  System	  –	  Non-‐contributory	  System	  –	  Non-‐contributory	  System	  –	  Non-‐contributory	   2009 364,361 102,212 -‐	   102,212

2008 409,608 109,570 -‐	   109,570

TIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  FidelityTIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  FidelityTIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  FidelityTIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  FidelityTIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  FidelityTIAA	  and/or	  CREF	  and/or	  Fidelity 2010 142,709,434 -‐	   20,264,740 20,264,740

2009 142,827,223 -‐	   20,281,467 20,281,467

2008 136,230,908 -‐	   19,348,204 19,348,204

Non-‐eligible	  employees	  Non-‐eligible	  employees	  Non-‐eligible	  employees	  Non-‐eligible	  employees	  Non-‐eligible	  employees	   2010 47,490,426 -‐	   -‐	   0

2009 46,473,968 -‐	   -‐	   0

2008 42,314,668 -‐	   -‐	   0

Figure	  6

J. pENSiON plaNS  aNd
rETirEmENT bENEfiTS

As required by state law, eligible non-exempt employees of  
the University (as defined by the U .S . Fair Labor Standards 
Act) are covered by the Utah Retirement Systems .  Eligible 
exempt employees (as defined by the U .S . Fair Labor 

Standards Act) are covered by the Teachers Insurance and 
Annuity Association (TIAA) and/or College Retirement 
Equities Fund (CREF) and/or Fidelity Investments 
(Fidelity) . The total employee compensation and the to-
tal contribution for each pension plan for the year ending 
June 30, 2010, and the two previous years were as follows: 
(Figure 6)
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University contributes 15 .72 percent of  gross earnings . Of  
this, l .5 percent is contributed to a 401(k) plan and 14 .22 
percent is credited as the University’s contribution .  For the 
employees in the Utah Public Safety with Social Security 
System – Non-contributory plan, the University contributes 
30 .18 percent of  gross earnings . Employer contributions 
to the 401(k) for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 
2008 were $555,500; $579,458; and $553,162 respectively . 
During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 
2008, the University’s contributions to all other Utah re-
tirement plans were $5,072,398; $5,406,174; and $5,327,208 
respectively . The University has no further liability once 
contributions are made .  Employee contributions to the 
401(k) plan for the same years were $908,086; $1,151,754; 
and $1,187,728 respectively . Employee contributions to the 
457 plan were $59,042; $101,893; and $137,463 respectively . 
 
The Utah Retirement Systems are established and governed 
by the respective sections of  Chapter 49 of  the Utah Code 
Annotated 1953 as amended . The Utah State Retirement 
Office Act in Chapter 49 provides for the administration of  
the Utah Retirement Systems and Plans under the direction 
of  the Utah State Retirement Board, whose members are 
appointed by the governor . The Utah Retirement Systems 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes fi-
nancial statements and required supplementary information 
for the State and School System – Contributory Retirement 
plan, State and School System – Non-contributory 
Retirement plan, and Public Safety Retirement System plan . 
A copy of  the report may be obtained by writing to the 
Utah Retirement Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake 
City, UT 84102, or by calling 1-800-753-7361 .  
       
Educators Mutual Association provides a 401(k) defined 
contribution plan that can be utilized by employees on 
the Utah Retirement State and School System – Non-
contributory plan . This contribution is in lieu of  the 1 .5 
percent that would have been contributed to the Utah 
Retirement System’s 401(k) plan . The contribution made 
by the University is at 1 .5 percent of  gross earnings . 
Contributions by the University become vested at the 
time the contribution is made . During the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, the University’s 
contribution to this 401(k) plan was $24,199; $24,197; 
and $24,576 respectively . The University has no further 
liability once contributions are made . Employee 
contributions for the same years were $42,444; $42,426; 
and $60,319 respectively .

TIAA and/or CREF and/or Fidelity provide individual de-
fined contribution retirement fund contracts with each partici-
pating employee . Employees may allocate contributions by the 
University to any or all of  the providers and the contract(s) 
become vested at the time the contribution is made . Employees 

are eligible to participate from the date of  employment and 
are not required to contribute to the fund . Benefits provided 
to retired employees are based on the value of  individual con-
tracts and the estimated life expectancy of  the employee at re-
tirement . For the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, 
the University’s contribution to this multiple employer defined 
contribution plan was 14 .2 percent of  the employees’ annual sal-
ary or $20,264,740; $20,281,467; and $19,348,204 respectively . 
The University has no further liability once annual contributions 
are made .  Employee contributions for the same years were 
$4,801,910; $5,319,248; and $5,082,017 respectively .

The University provides an early retirement option to em-
ployees who qualify and are approved by administration in 
accordance with University policy . This option is available 
to all employees whose accumulated age and years of  ser-
vice are equal to or greater than 75, that have met the mini-
mum age requirements, and where the early retirement is in 
the mutual best interest of  the employee and the University .

The policy provides two mutually exclusive early retire-
ment options for eligible employees; either six years (16 .67 
percent of  base salary per year) or five years (20 percent 
of  base salary per year) . The six-year option requires a 
minimum age of  56 and the five-year option requires a 
minimum age of  57 . Benefits include a monthly stipend 
equal to the agreed upon percent of  the retiree’s salary 
at the time of  active employment along with medical and 
dental insurance .

The projected future cost of  these stipends and the medical 
and dental insurance benefits have been calculated based 
on the known amount to be paid out in the next fiscal year 
plus projected increases of  2 .2 percent (University), 4 .0 
percent (USURF) for stipends and 6 .9 percent (University), 
9 .0 percent (USURF) for medical and dental premiums . 
These increases are based on historical data . The premiums 
for medical and dental benefits have also been increased 
by an age-adjusted factor of  2 .604 . The net present value 
of  the total projected costs is calculated using the estimat-
ed yield (4 .419%) for University investments in the Cash 
Management Investment Pool and (5%) for USURF . The 
net present value is the amount recognized on the financial 
statements as the liability for early retirement .

At June 30, 2010, there were 205 participants in the early-
retirement program . The program is funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis from current funds . Payments for the 
stipend in the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 
were $2,190,765; $1,651,058; and $1,718,943 respectively .  
Payments for the health care and life insurance benefits 
for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were 
$1,524,342; $1,157,477; and $1,315,122 respectively . 
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K. DeferreD 
compensation pLan

Employees of  the University may participate in several de-
ferred compensation plans adopted under the provisions 
of  Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 (Deferred 
Compensation Plans with Respect to Service for State and 
Local Governments) . The deferred compensation plans 
are available to all employees of  the University . Under the 
plans, employees may elect to defer a portion of  their sala-
ries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion until 
the withdrawal date . The deferred compensation amount is 
not available for withdrawal by employees until termination, 
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency .
 
The deferred compensation plans are administered by an 
unrelated financial institution . As part of  its fiduciary role, 
the University has an obligation of  due care in selecting the 
third party administrators . In the opinion of  the University 
administrators, the University has acted in a prudent man-
ner and is not liable for losses that may arise from the 
administration of  the plans .

The University is in compliance with the require-
ments of  subsection (g) of  IRC Section 457 . All assets 
for IRC Section 457 plans are externally held in trust 
for the exclusive benefit of  the participants or their 
beneficiaries rather than as assets of  the University . 

L. risK manaGement

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 
The University maintains insurance coverage for general, 
automobile, personal injury, errors and omissions, employ-
ee dishonesty, and malpractice liability up to $10 million 
per occurrence through policies administered by the Utah 
State Risk Management Fund . The University also insures 
its buildings, including those under construction, and con-
tents against all insurable risks of  direct physical loss or 
damage with the Utah State Risk Management Fund . This 
all-risk insurance coverage provides for repair or replace-
ment of  damaged property at a replacement cost basis sub-
ject to a deductible of  $1,000 per occurrence . All revenues 
from University operations, rental income for its residence 
halls, and tuition are insured against loss due to business 
interruption caused by fire or other insurable perils with 
the Utah State Risk Management Fund . All University em-
ployees are covered by workers’ compensation, including 
employer’s liability coverage by the Workers Compensation 
Fund of  Utah .  
 
 

SELF-INSURANCE FOR EMPLOYEE 
hEALTh  AND DENTAL CARE
On July 1, 1995, the University established a self-insurance 
fund for employee health and dental care . GASB Statement 
No . 10 requires a liability for claims be reported if  infor-
mation prior to the issuance of  the financial statements 
indicates it is probable a liability has been incurred at the 
date of  the financial statements . The University’s estimated 
self-insurance claims liability at June 30, 2010 and June 30, 
2009 is as follows: 

The University has recorded the investment of  the 
health and dental care funds at June 30, 2010, and the 
estimated liability for self-insurance claims at that date 
in the Statement of  Net Assets . The income on fund 
investments, the expenses related to the administra-
tion of  the self  insurance, and the estimated provision 
for the claims liabilities for the year then ended are re-
corded in the Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Assets and the Statement of  Net Assets . 
    
CONTINGENCIES    
The University has been named in several lawsuits where 
litigation is pending .  It is unlikely that any judgments 
against the University will be established or would other-
wise be material in nature . The lawsuits are such that any 
financial settlement would be covered primarily by insur-
ance held by the University .

At June 30, 2010, the University had outstanding 
commitments for the construction and remodeling of  
University buildings of  approximately $8 million .  

M. subsequent events

Certain events occurred after the close of  the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2010, but before this report was published that af-
fected the reported bonds outstanding . On July 28, 2010, the 
University’s $11,070,000 Series 2010 Research Revenue Bonds 
were issued for the purpose of  refunding in advance of  their 

2010	   2009	  

Estimated	  claims	  liability	  at	  
beginning	  of	  year

Estimated	  claims	  liability	  at	  
beginning	  of	  year $4,170,708	   $3,862,310	  

Current	  year	  claims	  and	  
changes	  in	  estimates

Current	  year	  claims	  and	  
changes	  in	  estimates 36,410,373	   35,488,247	  

Claim	  payments,	  including	  
related	  legal	  and	  
administrative	  expenses

Claim	  payments,	  including	  
related	  legal	  and	  
administrative	  expenses (37,053,689) (35,179,849)

Estimated	  claims	  liability
at	  end	  of	  year

Estimated	  claims	  liability
at	  end	  of	  year $3,527,392	   $4,170,708	  
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maturity a portion of  the Series 2002A Research Revenue 
Bonds that were previously issued . This refunding resulted in 
an increase of  $1,072,925 in the net carrying amount of  the re-
funded debt, a reduction in the future debt service payments of  
$618,863, and an economic gain (difference between the present 
value of  the old and new debt service payments) of  $575,514 . 
Also, with the passing of  the Utah Senate Bill 69 on March 4, 
2010, the College of  Eastern Utah was merged with Utah State 
University effective July 1, 2010 . The bill changes the name of  
the College of  Eastern Utah to Utah State University-College 

of  Eastern Utah and establishes it as a comprehensive regional 
college of  Utah State University with campuses in Price, Utah 
and Blanding, Utah . Utah State University-College of  Eastern 
Utah will be led by a chancellor, who will report directly to 
USU’s president . Both schools will retain separate athletic pro-
grams, school colors, and mascots . The financial statements of  
Utah State University-College of  Eastern Utah will be com-
bined with the financial statements of  Utah State University 
beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 .
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USU’s Caine College of the Arts offers a visiting artist program, an award-winning faculty, a world-
class performance hall, and internship assignments with prominent artists and designers.  
Pictured: Suebin Jin, Incheon South Korea, Music, BM
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